C R D Capital Region
Development Authority
Agenda
CRDA Board Meeting

March 21, 2024

***5:00pm***
In-person

(Teams meeting available)

5:00pm - 5:00pm ) Call to Order & Minutes {1-18-24)*

5:00pm - 5:10pm ° Mayor Reports
- Hartford Mayor Arunan Arulampalam
- East Hartford Mayor Connor Martin

5:10pm — 5:20pm @ Finance Report
- Monthly/Quarterly Update
- SFI/OSE reports due May 1, 2024

5:20pm — 5:30pm o Housing & Neighborhood Committee
- 30 Laurel Street *

- DoNo Amendment Parcel B *

- Project Updates

5:30pm — 5:40pm ® Regional & Economic Development Projects Committee (RED)
- Project Updates — E. Hartford

5:40pm — 5:55pm o Venue Committee
- XL Center

° Bids for reconstruction

- Pratt & Whitney Stadium at Rentschler Field

- CT Convention Center

5:55pm — 6:30pm e Executive Director
- - Underwriting Position Hiring
- Regional Ag Market
- MRDA status
- UConn expansion
- Front Street (81 & 89 Arch Street Status)
- Bushnell South Redevelopment
¢ Spinnaker Loan
° NRZ Letter
° Parking/Traffic RFP
° Storm Drainage/MDC issues
° Projects (55 Elm, 65 Elm, Trinity Street, TMO)
- Construction Report

6:30pm ° Adjourn

* Vote ltem
Microsoft Teams meeting
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting
Meeting ID: 238 555 783 807
Passcode: DhNkgD
Download Teams | Join on the web
Or call in (audio only) +1 872-242-7941,,.234408010# United States, Chicago Phone Conference ID: 234 408 010#



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MGQ4NzVmNzktOTMwMi00YjVlLTk5MWUtMjZkMWExOTFmOWUx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2218593aab-f44c-4498-8655-4b7ca01883e7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2238c4f470-445e-4abe-bcca-6e80eca414f9%22%7d

DRAFT
Minutes

January 18, 2024



Capital Region Development Authority
100 Columbus Boulevard, 5 Floor
Hartford, CT 06103
Thursday, January 18, 2024
3:00pm — Virtual or In person Meeting
(The Board Meeting was held in person with Microsoft Teams with public access availability)

Board Members Present: Chairman David Robinson; Vice Chairman Andy Bessette; Andrew Diaz-Matos;
Paul Hinsch; Randal Davis; Bob Patricelli; Pam Sucato; David Jorgensen; Seila Mosquera-Bruno; Daniel
O’Keefe/Matthew Pugliese

Board Members Absent: Mayor Arunan Arulampalam; Mayor Connor Martin; Joanne Berger-Sweeney

CRDA Staff Present: Michael Freimuth, Anthony Lazzaro; Joseph Geremia; Robert Houlihan; Jennifer
Gaffey; Kim Hart; Terryl Mitchell Smith

Guests: Mike Zaleski, Riverfront Recapture
Chairman David Robinson called the meeting to order at 3:00pm.
Minutes

The minutes from December 6, 2023 were moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by Andrew Diaz-Matos and
approved.

New CRDA Board Members & Organizing Issues
- DECD Commissioner Daniel O’Keefe with Matthew Pugliese as Proxy
- Hartford Mayor Arunan Arulampalam
- Committees
* RED Chairman — East Hartford Mayor Connor Martin
* Members
- Housing — Hartford Mayor Arulampalam
- Executive & Finance — Hartford Mayor Arulampalam
- RED - DECD (O’Keefe/Pugliese)

The following motion was moved by Andy Bessette, seconded by Randal Davis and approved.
“Effective January 18, 2023, the CRDA Committee assignments noted were approved.”

Mayor Reports

Due to the Mayors’ absence, the mayor reports were omitted.

Financial Update — December 2023

CRDA CFO Joseph Geremia reported on the following financial information:

Financial Update — January 2024

Fiscal Year 2024 Operating Statistics

CT Regional Market - Nov. 2023
Stats: Occupancy: 82% with 16 tenants



Activity:
Nov. financials:

Farmers’ Market: 2023 season from April 1 through October 28

Operating revenue $40,600 favorable to budget due to seasonal parking agreements
Operating expenses $91,000 favorable to budget due to savings in security and
maintenance deferred to spring

Net income of $150,500 favorable to budget by $131,600

Total year projection of $161,800 net income favorable to budget by $40,000

CRDA Parking Facilities — Nov./Dec. 2023

Stats (Dec.):
Nov. financials:

Utilization of 75% is favorable to budget by 14%

$281,900 favorable to budget due to increase in monthly parkers, hotel guest

overnight revenues, as well as transient and corporate validation revenues

Expenses $194,100 unfavorable compared to budget due to repairs & maintenance, and
increases in credit card fees due to increased transient revenue offset with savings in
utilities

Net income of $16,900 favorable to budget by $87,800

Total year projection of $325,900 net income even with budget

Church Street Garage — Nov./Dec. 2023

Stats (Dec.):
Nov. financials:

Utilization of 14% is unfavorable to budget by 4%

Revenues $98,600 favorable to budget due to increases in Hilton parkers and corporate
validations as well as slight increase in corporate monthly parkers

Expenses $55,600 unfavorable compared to budget due to increases in insurance and
repairs & maintenance offset with savings in personnel

Net Loss of $168,700 favorable to budget by $43,000

Total year projection of $18,000 net income even with budget

Bushnell South Garage — Nov./Dec. 2023

Stats (Dec.):

Nov. financials:

Averaging 160 state vehicles per day-42% utilization

Tuesday through Thursday average of 200 state vehicles per day

$8,300 favorable to budget due to transient revenues

Expenses $14,500 unfavorable compared to budget due to increase in insurance offset
with savings in personnel

Net Loss unfavorable to budget by $6,200

Total year projection of break-even with CRDA appropriation even with budget
Bushnell Theatre event parking cooperation — operations personnel coordination

CT Convention Center — Nov. 2023

Event Update:

Nov. financials;

Hosted 46 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 46 events

Scheduled for 125 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 109 events

Corporate and short-term meeting segments returning

Increased event inquiries and returned contracts for FY2025 and FY2026

Beyond King Tut exhibit and GLOW holiday show performed better than budget
Revenues $308,500 favorable to budget due to two additional banquet catering events
and F&B revenues from public events

Expenses $260,100 favorable to budget due to savings in event personnel and vacant
positions

Net operations favorable to budget by $568,600

Total year projection of break-even with CRDA appropriation even with budget

XL Center — Nov. 2023

Event Update:

Hosted 32 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 28 events \
: ()



Scheduled for 116 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 116 events
Concerts scheduled in Feb. and Mar. 2024 with holds from Mar. 2024 through May 2024
Increased Hartford Wolfpack group sales activity
Sports lounge seeing weekend and event-day activity; minimal week day activity
Sports betting CT Lottery YTD net revenue of $18,000 through Dec. 2023

Nov. financials: Event revenue $82,400 unfavorable to budget due to concert schedule pushed back,
Jurassic World event, as well as UConn women'’s basketball and men’s hockey offset
slightly with favorable Monster Truck event and UConn men’s basketball
Other Income $175,300 unfavorable compared to budget due to timing of sponsorship
partners and ticket charge fees
Operating expenses $92,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in personnel
offset with increased expenses in utilities as well as F&B personnel, credit card fees, and
supplies
Hockey operations $127,100 favorable compared to budget due to increase in TV
revenues and savings in sales personnel
Sports lounge net operations loss of $284,100 through Dec. 2023
Net operations unfavorable to budget by $68,600, excluding sports lounge net operations
Total year projection of $19,600 net income even with budget with CRDA appropriation,
exclusive of estimated sports lounge net operations loss

P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field — Nov. 2023

Event Update: 6 UConn football games, 1 int’l soccer game, with 18 parking lot and catered events held

Nov. financials: Event revenue $175,500 favorable compared to budget with $325,200 attributed to
professional soccer offset with $112,800 unfavorable UConn football season and $36,900
unfavorable parking lot and catered events compared to budget
Operating expenses $34,300 unfavorable compared to budget due to F&B personnel and
credit card fees slightly offset with savings in insurance
Other Income $45,400 favorable to budget due to sponsorship partners
Net operations favorable to budget by $186,600
Total year projection of $9,100 net income even with budget with CRDA appropriation

Mr. Diaz-Matos asked what the projected loss for the Sports Book is for the year. Mr. Geremia replied that it is
being recorded under the Sports Lounge, and it is projected that it may be a $600,000 to $700,000 gain for the
year. There is also the Sports betting portion, from the CT Lottery and so far, CRDA has received $18,000. The
Lottery projections were that we would be able to offset the lounge loss, but we haven’t seen that volume come
through yet.

Housing and Neighborhood Committee

Mr. Freimuth gave the briefing in Joanne Berger Sweeney’s absence.
55 Elm - late Spring opening

Hartford Hilton to Doubletree/residential — March opening

Colt — closed & occupied

525 Main — June opening scheduled

275 Pearl — June opening scheduled

29 Ashley — sold by NINA

Regional & Economic Development Projects Committee (RED)
Mr. Freimuth gave the briefing in Mayor Martin’s absence.

Albany & Woodland Project - Parcel B



Background: The City has tried unsuccessfully for a number of years to develop the vacant 2.3-acre property at
the corner of Albany Avenue and Woodland Street in the heart of the Upper Albany neighborhood. The site sits
along a significant regional, cultural, commercial and commuter corridor with a vibrant Caribbean/West Indian,
African American and Hispanic presence around it. The City hopes to build on the success of other initiatives in
the area, including the University of Hartford Performing Arts Center project, the YMCA North Hartford
Center project and the Hartford Public Library — Upper Albany Branch project, as well as other streetscape and
fagade improvement projects.

The City is proposing a public/private partnership in which the property will be subdivided into two lots and
sold to two separate developers. One of those parcels — Parcel B - will be sold to the non-profit GrowAmerica
(acting as “Community Development Properties Woodland Inc” for this project), who plans to construct a
32,000-sf building on the site, housing a new City Health Department, an upscale restaurant, a potential bank
and one additional commercial tenant. Approximately 119 parking spaces will be constructed on the interior of
the site to support the development. Total development costs for this project were originally estimated at
between $10 million and $12.5 million.

Proposal: Construction estimates have increased, and projects costs are now expected to total $19.4 million,
including Health Department fit out. To fill the gap, the City is proposing to increase its contribution from the
Revolving Loan Funds held by CRDA from $7.0 million to $12.85 million. The city will grant an additional
$1.05 million directly to the developer.

The $5.5 million CRDA construction loan approved by the Committee and Board in March of 2023 will not
change. The $1.75 million of the Revolving Loan Funds approved in April for distribution as pre-development

funding, however, has been increased to $3.1 million.

Albany Woodland B Development Budget:

CRDA Bond Funds $ 5,500,000

City Revolving Loan Fund $12,850,000 (to be administered by CRDA)
Additional City Funds $ 1,050,000 (to be administered directly by City)
TDC $19,400,000

Chairman Robinson confirmed with Mr. Freimuth that the City of Hartford is putting in more funds and CRDA
is allowing the city to utilize the funds in a slightly different proportion than before. Mr. Freimuth added that
the CRDA funds are a loan.

The following motion was moved by David Jorgensen, seconded by Randal Davis and approved.

“The executive director is authorized to grant up to 812.85M of City funds consistent with the CRDA/City of
Hartford MOU of December 3, 2021, to Community Development Properties Woodland Inc (or such acceptable
single purpose entity). Such funds would be distributed as a grant, with up to $3,100,000 released as pre-
development funding. All funding shall be subject to such fiduciary terms and conditions as deemed necessary
and appropriate by the executive director and CRDA counsel.”

Bushnell South Property Acquisition Loan
Term Sheet — Loan to acquire real estate within Bushnell South redevelopment area.

Borrower: Spinnaker Development (SREP HTFD II LLC, the single purpose entity)
Purpose: Acquisition of ‘Parcel A’ (90,000 sf/2 acre +/-) in accordance with existing Option between
Owner (Alkon/Konover) and Borrower “
4 @/ )



Loan:

Covenants:

Other

Conditions:

CRDA
Options

Other
Deal
Elements

(Block bordered by Hudson, Capitol, West and Buckingham)

Currently vacant lot used for parking with one small building and billboard.
250 parking spots (estimated)

3 parcels (63, 67 Capitol, 186 Buckingham)

Acquisition of ‘Parcel B’ (13,000 sf)
3 Parcels (94,98, 110 Buckingham Street)

Long term redevelopment to start within five years as part of Bushnell South plan for
residential mixed use with parking in accordance with Goody Clancy plan and
City of Harford land use/zoning

Up to $3M at 3% /O for a five-year term, Interest deferred during the non-exclusive and at no
cost utilization of Parcel A to Bushnell Theatre patrons for designated events.

Borrower to provide additional funds for acquisition and to cover closing costs.

No prepayment Penalty

First Position priority loan, security, collateral on all six parcels, no other liens.

Loan and interest due upon maturity

Subject to CRDA approval, an extension of the term may be made if developer is actively
pursuing development, or market conditions are unfavorable and/or CRDA unable to commit and
deliver necessary public financial support for a project on the parcel and/or CRDA does not wish
to exercise its option to purchase at end of year 5.

Long term redevelopment program acceptable to CRDA (to be governed by a land development
agreement following Goody Clancy development envelope (# units, # parking spaces, # s.f.
commercial)

Covenants travel with parcels for any third-party acquirer.

Covenants remain with parcels after loan retirement.

Borrower responsible for all operating expenses (taxes, utilities, insurance, etc)

Confirming appraisal

Environmental assessment with any costs/liabilities on borrower

Alkon/Konover to rescind offer to Federal General Services Administration Federal Court House
solicitation (with confirmation from GSA likely to lag loan closing)

Funded ($2M from CRDA Recapitalized loan pool, $1M from COH MOU Revolving Loan)
CRDA may include the initial acquisition loan as part of a restructured development financing
package at a future date.

Release of Parcel B for a separate development, independent of Parcel A with pay down of
principal.

At loan maturity (or at such time as allowed by extension) providing Borrower is not pursuing
active development or market conditions prohibit development consistent with Goody Clancy
plan, there shall be an Option to CRDA to purchase Parcel A prior to any offer of sale to others
at Borrowers cost, inclusive of loan, its deferred interest, and approved/eligible
holding/predevelopment costs but in no event for more than appraised value at time of option.

Post Loan Closing: Subject to securing funding, CRDA with Bushnell and developers active in
the area will create parking management and development plan consistent with Goody Clancy to



address parking and traffic issues within the Bushnell South Redevelopment area, such plan to
explore options to improve access and egress of Buckingham and Capitol Ave garages as well as
use of other vacant lots in area adjacent to development area.

Minimum of three-year agreement for Bushnell Theatre patrons to utilize on a nonexclusive
basis an estimated 250 parking spaces at Parcel A at no fee/charge to the Theatre for designated
Theatre events.

Seek to allow the Bushnell Theatre to invest equity for first floor commercial space and/or
parking facilities within land development agreements for Parcel A or abutting Parcel 4 should
such investment be feasible.

Take steps to improve communication loop between city, CRDA, Bushnell and various
developers as to final plan of development and construction related implementation.

Andrew Diaz-Matos said that some of these are cost items, i.e. the survey; the parking plan, etc. are we taking
on those costs or are they shared with Bushnell or Spinnaker? Mr. Freimuth responded stating that CRDA will
try to spread out the cost but there is some capacity at CRDA to take on some of this initiative. There are some
funds set aside for predevelopment.

Mr. Patricelli, with the advice from counsel, will abstain from voting on this item. He stated that he would like
the record to show that he is very supportive of the proposal that is being made by Mr. Freimuth and would also
like you to know that the Bushnell would like to express their appreciation to the Chairman and Executive
Director, particularly to their interventions to come to this collectively suitable compromise proposal on
parking. Further stating that a key piece going forward is the creation of the communications loop. We would
welcome that and would propose that, something like an updated version of the Bushnell South Planning Group
be constituted by the CRDA, not as a formal CRDA body, but as an advisory body, to inform other parties of
interest and gather input for the CRDA, not as a binding set of recommendations but as an advisory to the
CRDA.

The Chairman thanked Mr. Patricelli for his comments and participation in the process. He also stated that Bob
is abstaining because he also sits on the Board of the Bushnell. Mike will continue to spearhead putting
something together regarding the “communication loop”.

Mr. Bessette asked Mr. Patricelli if this addresses everything that Mr. David Fay asked Andy to address last
month? Mr. Patricelli responded yes, in spirit. There will be new issues that will come up once the parking
study is done. The Bushnell is withdrawing its proposal to acquire the option itself.

The Chairman asked Mr. Freimuth if he’s reviewed the terms with Spinnaker and if they are on board with the
approach? Mr. Freimuth responded yes, and that Spinnaker is on the Board Meeting call. They owe CRDA
some information, appraisals, environmental reports, surveys, the letter to the Federal Government, things of
that nature. There have been discussions regarding our counsel and their counsel getting together the week of
January 22, 2024, to start mapping this out.

Sila Mosquera Bruno stated that she would like to thank Mr. Freimuth for putting this together and there is a
path forward. David Jorgensen also stated that he was happy that we were able to move this forward.

The following motion was moved by David Jorgensen, seconded by Randal Davis and approved with Bob
Patricelli abstaining.

“The Executive Director is authorized to 1/ lend up to $3M to Spinnaker (or such acceptable single purpose

6 (¥



entity) at the terms and conditions as outlined above, 2/to secure the aforementioned land

development agreement for subsequent board approval, 3/to undertake a traffic and parking
management study to guide the entire Bushnell South development area; and 4/ to establish a process
to integrate the various concerns of the multiple parties and developers active in the area including but
not limited to development scale, density, traffic, parking, storm water management, design and overall
operational issues.”

East Hartford Projects update

Showcase Theater site —development starting in April

Silverlane Shopping Center — preparing for demolition

Founder’s Plaza - Land development agreements for demolition and site work

Venue Committee

XL Center

The Wolfpack are currently 10-6 at home, with attendance averaging around 3,900 fans per game. UConn
hockey has played four games at XL and their attendance has averaged about 3,600. The UConn women’s
basketball team has played five games with an average attendance of 8,000, while the men have played five
games with an average attendance of 11,600.

The CT Ice Tournament featuring teams from UConn, Quinnipiac, Sacred Heart and Yale will be played
January 26™ and 27" at XL. Other upcoming events include the Hartford Home Show this weekend, Andrea
Bocelli on February 23" (following cancellation of his December show) and a Toby Mac show on March 20".

Pratt & Whitney Stadium

For the third year in a row, the Stadium played host to the Magic of Lights drive-through holiday light display.
Attendance has roughly been the same each year, with about 20,000 cars over the show’s five-week run and the
Stadium receiving a flat fee per car, plus expenses.

Major renovation work at the Stadium is still awaiting Bond Commission approval. CRDA had requested
the $12 million approved by the General Assembly for the first phase of the $60 million project.
Construction management bid documents have been drafted and will be issued once funds have been
allocated.

Mr. Bessette asked Mr. Freimuth when the Bond Commission will or if this project will be approved. Mr.
Freimuth responded that the request did not make December’s Bond Commission meeting and although
the meetings are scheduled monthly, the next meeting will likely be in the Spring and we will try to get
this on the Bond Commission then.

Connecticut Convention Center
The Convention Center has recently completed the replacement of its domestic hot water system. In December,
the State Bond Commission allocated $1.4 million to the facility for necessary security upgrades,

replacement/repair of variable fan drive motors and other repairs throughout the building.

The Glow Holiday Light Festival and Market was a resounding success with over 54,000 tickets sold.

s

"’ (v



Larger upcoming events include the RV and Camping show in January, as well as the Connecticut Wedding and
Bridal Expo and the ever-popular Connecticut Flower and Garden Show in February.

Executive Director

OVG — CRDA is in discussions with OVG on the Management Agreement for the XL Center, working to get to
the Board and to OPM for consideration.

XL Center Bid Process — Bob Houlihan is working on getting the bids in the next few weeks. Also, RFI’s had to
be clarified and sent out.

UConn Campus Expansion — Northland and UConn have come to an agreement for UConn to take over the
former St. Joseph’s space at the XL Center, bringing new programs downtown to the 50,000 sq.ft. of space.
The programs will be: Food Entrepreneurial Agricultural related curriculum; Community Based Clinic; PhD
Training - Wellness and Mental Health Facility; Institutional Sports Medicine & Health Research Unit,
connected to the Farmington UConn Health Center. The plan is to be in by the end of 2024. They are
anticipating 50-75 staff members plus students. They may also utilize the Church Street garage, similar to the
agreement they have at the convention center.

Riverfront Land Inc. (RFI) - Update
Acquired by Riverfront Recapture at Windsor/Hartford Line

Riverfront Recapture is working in partnership with the City of Hartford and numerous state agencies to build
2.5 miles of Riverwalk and a new park that will make a regional connection to Windsor. CRDA has provided
$1,025,000 to Riverfront Recapture for the park’s conceptual planning, environmental site investigation,
building assessment, remediation and demolition, riverwalk design, regulatory permitting and commercial
market analysis.

In addition to the CRDA contribution, the project has also secured private funding, Federal EPA and CT DECD
Brownfield funds, a CT DEEP greenways and trails grant, Federal Highway TAP and Community Connectivity
grants via the DOT, contributions from both the City of Hartford and Town of Windsor and more recently a CT
DECD CIF grant.

Riverfront has started the Master Planning work for the future park and its associated commercial development
site. In November, Riverfront contracted with Hargreaves Jones, an internationally recognized Landscape
Architecture firm that specializes in waterfront development projects. Services include community
engagement, program development, economic research, improving the natural environment, master planning,
and cost estimating funded via a Federal HUD grant secured through Congressman Larson’s office. The goal is
to complete the project’s Master Plan (park and commercial space), begin fundraising for the next phase of
development, and hopefully start the design and permitting work before the close of 2024.

In addition to Master Planning efforts, the project is working through its initial phase environmental challenges
including impacts to numerous endangered, threatened, and special concern species and securing the regulatory
permits for remediating the Brownfield site which includes significant excavation to provide cap material for
covering impacted soils. The excavation and cap work will result in an expanded cove connected to the river
and a new 10-acre commercial development pad away from the river and out of the floodplain.

Remediation and initial site work was scheduled to start in the spring of 2024, but recent regulatory setbacks
have increased development costs, created delays, and negatively impacted the start of construction. And there



are real concerns project funding secured years ago will not be sufficient to complete the work as post-Covid
inflation has caused material, equipment and labor prices to jump.

Mr. Freimuth updated the Board on the Riverfront Land Inc. project:

Chairman Robinson asked what the risk to the project of the delay? Mr. Freimuth responded it is a cost
exposure. Right now it is compromised due to environmental rules, and the cost continues to go up.

Mr. Mike Zaleski thanked Chairman Robinson for the support and also the opportunity to update the Board on
this project. Riverfront Recapture is working on a variety of project along the river including the Hartford to
Windsor Riverwalk which will connect to the sixty acres of new riverfront space that we were able to purchase
in 2019 and as Mike Freimuth mentioned we are moving forward a master plan for the design of a brand new
community space, a public park along the Connecticut River, which will help us achieve our mission of
connecting people to the Connecticut River. There is an additional ten acres of commercial development that
will go there as well. The challenge is building in a flood plain. There should be significant regulations but what
we are coming up against is understaffing at certain agencies, the Army Corp of Engineers has had our projects
for a while. We are trying to reach out to others who have influence over these agencies and trying to get some
consideration to move up the line.

Chairman Robinson asked if the Hartline Trail is running through Riverfront Park and will run up to and
through this parcel as well?

Mr. Zaleski said the Hartline would connect to Riverside Park, then Riverside Park will connect two and half
miles north to the Hartford Windsor line where Riverfront Recapture owns these sixty acres of property and
then there are additional connections to Kenney Park and other ideas that will connect the region through a
multi model trail. These are projects that are successful in other cities/regions, and we are hoping to continue to
move this project forward. This is only one piece of the puzzle.

Randal Davis said the city has been working closely with Riverfront and they are extremely good stewards of
the area and have been exceptionally good partners throughout this process.

Mr. Jorgensen asked if we have the support high enough from Federal officials that can help to try to move this
forward? Mr. Zaleski responded stating that Congressman Larson has been helpful and a lot of the holdup is
being caused by staffing issues.

ALl PROJECT

)

e



Construction Report

Mr. Freimuth stated that at each meeting he has been going through the construction report and decided to
include it in the materials for the Board package.

Mr. Freimuth asked Board members to review the Board of Director information sheet and give any updates to
Jennifer Gaffey.

Mr. Bessette asked for clarification of Board Meeting dates/times. Chairman Robinson indicated that once a
quarter there will be a late meeting, 5:00pm and the other three meetings will be on Teams at 3:00pm. This will
be reviewed at the end of the year to see if his will change.

Executive Session

The following motion was moved by David Jorgensen, seconded by Seila Mosquera-Bruno and approved.

“CRDA Board members were moved to a separate “virtual room” to discuss a personnel matter.”

The Executive Session ended and Board Members were brought back to the Board Meeting. The meeting
adjourned with no further action.

Adjourn — 4:20pm

Next Board Meeting — February 15, 2024, 3:00pm —virtual with in-person option.



Finance Report



100 Columbus Boulevard
Suite 500

. . Hartford, CT 06103-2819
Capital Region Tel (860) 527-0100
Development Authority Fax (860) 527-0133

www.crdact.net
Financial Update — March 2024

Fiscal Year 2024 Financial Statements for the Six Months Ending 12/31/2023

Balance Sheet

- Current cash increase reflects timing differences with state funding regarding housing construction
drawdowns

- Restricted investment increase reflects escrowed funds towards the City-funded housing program

- Accounts Receivable increase reflects increased venue event activity

- Non-current housing loan asset increase reflects housing construction drawdowns from 315 Trumbull
St., 55 Elm St., 275 Pearl St., 525 Main St. as well as the Doubletree renovation.

- Accounts payable net increase relates to timing differences in state funding within the CRDA Housing
Initiative program and escrowed funds towards the City-funded housing program

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
- Grant Income reflects State appropriation funding
- Other Income reflects CRDA housing loan origination fees
- Combined facilities income and expenses referenced in venue financial projections

Fiscal Year 2024 Operating Statistics

CT Regional Market - Jan. 2024
Stats: Occupancy: 82% with 16 tenants
Activity: Farmers’ Market: 2024 season open on April 6
Jan. financials: Operating revenue $31,500 favorable to budget due to seasonal parking agreements

Operating expenses $70,400 favorable to budget due to savings in security and
maintenance deferred to spring

Net income of $172,000 favorable to budget by $101,900
Total year projection of $166,800 net income favorable to budget by $45,000

CRDA Parking Facilities — Jan./Feb. 2024

Stats (Feb.): Utilization of 78% is favorable to budget by 16%

Jan. financials: Revenues $350,800 favorable to budget due to increase in monthly parkers, as well as
transient and corporate validation revenues
Expenses $356,400 unfavorable compared to budget due to personnel, repairs &
maintenance and increases in credit card fees due to increased transient revenue offset
with savings in utilities
Net income of $62,500 unfavorable to budget by $5,600
Total year projection of $325,900 net income even with budget

Church Street Garage — Jan./Feb. 2024
Stats (Feb.): Utilization increased to 26% is unfavorable to budget by 1%
Jan. financials: Revenues $140,500 favorable to budget due to increases in DoubleTree parkers and
corporate validations as well as slight increase in corporate monthly parkers
Expenses $105,100 unfavorable compared to budget due to increases in insurance and

repairs & maintenance \‘,
Net loss of $66,700 favorable to budget by $35,400 [

Total year projection of $18,000 net income even with budget



Financial Update — March 2024 (cont.)

Bushnell South Garage - Jan. 2024
Stats: Averaging 160 state vehicles per day-42% utilization
Tuesday through Thursday average of 200 state vehicles per day
Jan. financials: Revenues $11,800 favorable to budget due to transient revenues
Expenses $22,300 unfavorable compared to budget due to increase in insurance
Net income of $155,400 unfavorable to budget by $10,500
Total year projection of break-even with CRDA appropriation even with budget
Bushnell Theatre event parking cooperation — operations personnel coordination

CT Convention Center — Jan. 2024

Event Update: Hosted 61 events this fiscal year with YTD attendance over 234,000
Scheduled for 128 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 109 events
Corporate and short-term meeting segments returning
Increased event inquiries and returned contracts for FY2025 and FY2026
Beyond King Tut exhibit and GLOW holiday show performed better than budget

Jan. financials: Revenues $240,300 favorable to budget due to two additional banquet catering events
and F&B revenues from public events
Expenses $180,300 favorable to budget due to savings in event personnel and vacant positions as
well as CUP utilities
Net operations favorable to budget by $420,600
Total year projection $325,000 favorable to budget with CRDA appropriation

XL Center —Jan. 2024

Event Update: Hosted 64 events this fiscal year with YTD approximate attendance of 279,000
Scheduled for 116 events this fiscal year vs. budget of 116 events
Concerts scheduled in March and April with holds for end of Q1 in FY2025
Increased Hartford Wolfpack group sales activity

Jan. financials: Event revenue $325,500 unfavorable to budget due to concert schedule pushed back
($409,400) as well as UConn women’s basketball ($120,100) offset slightly with favorable UConn
men’s basketball 39,100, men’s hockey $3,000, and misc. family events $161,900
Other Income $225,800 unfavorable compared to budget due to timing of sponsorship partners
and ticket charge fees
Operating expenses $57,900 favorable compared to budget due to savings in personnel offset
with increased expenses in utilities as well as F&B personnel, credit card fees, and supplies
Hockey operations $345,800 favorable compared to budget due to increase in TV revenues and
savings in sales personnel
Net operations unfavorable to budget by $147,600, excluding sports lounge net operations
Total year projection of $19,600 net income even with budget with CRDA appropriation, exclusive
of estimated sports lounge net operations loss

Sports lounge weekend and event-day activity outperforming minimal week day activity
Initiated marketing campaign in January and staffing changes in February
Launched a new menu in March with local events to come
Sports betting CT Lottery YTD net revenue of $28,000 through Feb. 2024
50% collected between Jan. and Feb. 2024
Sports lounge net operations loss of $375,000 through Feb. 2024

50% decrease in average monthly net operations loss O



Financial Update — March 2024 (cont.)

P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field — Jan. 2024

Event Update: 6 UConn football games, 1 int’l soccer game, with 24 parking lot and catered events held

Jan. financials: Event revenue $213,000 favorable compared to budget with $325,200 attributed to
professional soccer and $600 favorable parking lot and catered events offset with $112,800
unfavorable UConn football season compared to budget
Operating expenses $33,300 unfavorable compared to budget due to F&B personnel slightly
offset with savings in insurance
Other Income $53,800 favorable to budget due to sponsorship partners
Net operations favorable to budget by $233,500
Total year projection of $9,100 net income even with budget with CRDA appropriation

(IL )



(UNAUDITED)

CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023

2024 2023 Variance
ASSETS
Current assets:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $13,110,490 $14,166,363 ($1,055,873)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 29,646,214 28,838,370 807,844
Unrestricted investments 12,111,335 8,930,519 3,180,816
Restricted investments 19,184,285 3,428,536 15,755,749
Accounts receivable, net 2,555,241 755,496 1,799,745
Lease receivable 2,739,512 2,739,512 0
Loans receivable: housing-current, net 62,772 40,787 21,985
Due from State of Connecticut 0 2,250,000 (2,250,000)
Other current assets 1,376,126 853,576 522,550
Total current assets $80,785,975 $62,003,159 $18,782,816
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents $5,238,068 $5,065,458 $172,610
Restricted investments 742,343 722,666 19,677
Lease receivable, non-current 19,024,780 19,024,780 -
Loans receivable-housing, net 142,347,489 128,386,865 13,960,624
Other assets 2,830,867 2,415,920 414,947
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress 107,806 3,786,765 (3,678,959)
Capital assets being depreciated:
General Operations, net 27,507 17,240 10,267
Adriaen's Landing, net 186,709,628 191,511,527 (4,801,899)
XL Center, net 48,407,608 49,595,102 (1,187,494)
Church Street Garage, net 19,161,456 19,805,456 (644,000)
Bushnell South Garage, net 16,204,094 16,420,149 (216,055)
Intangible assets being amortized:
Right-To-Use Parking System Arrangements, net 1,617,300 1,617,300 -
Total non-current assets $442,418,946 $438,369,228 $4,049,718
Total assets $523,204,921 $500,372,387 $22,832,534
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $57,919,649 $42,393,245 $15,526,404
Accrued interest payable 114,829 106,923 7,906
Current portion of bonds payable 4,290,000 4,290,000 -
Current portion of loan payable 817,011 817,011 -
Coronavirus relief fund deferred revenue 698,934 698,934 -
Parking System Arrangements 646,920 646,920 -
Total current liabilities $64,487,343 $48,953,033 $15,534,310
Non-current liabilities:
Due to State of Connecticut-contract assistance $64,783,778 $63,604,589 $1,179,189
Bonds payable, net 55,769,194 55,827,013 (57,819)
Loan payable 2,803,169 3,206,578 (403,409)
Parking System Arrangements 970,380 970,380 -
Total non-current liabilities $124,326,521 $123,608,560 $717,961
Total liabilities $188,813,864 $172,561,593 $16,252,271
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Leases $21,764,292 $21,764,292 $0
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $142,478,408 $153,714,512 ($11,236,104)
Restricted for:
Housing loans 142,410,261 128,427,651 13,982,610
Central Utility Plant 1,417,227 1,072,041 345,186
Other 23,747,469 12,576,678 11,170,791
Unrestricted 2,573,400 10,255,620 (7,682,220)
Total net position $312,626,765 $306,046,502 $6,580,263
Total habilities, deferred inflow of resources and net position $523,204,921 $500,372,387 $22,832,534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



UNAUDITED
CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the quarters ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

2024 2023 Variance
Operating revenues:
Grants - State of Connecticut/Other:
Operational $574,985 $262,281 $312,704
Development district, subsidy and Other 2,100,000 1,300,000 800,000
Coronavirus relief fund revenue - - -
American Rescue Plan Act funds - - -
Combined Facilities:
Convention Center 3,751,585 3,607,282 144,303
Parking 1,872,930 1,634,870 238,060
Central utility plant 347,306 393,301 (45,995)
XL Center 1,458,608 1,747,510 (288,902)
Church Street Garage 411,534 305,280 106,254
Bushnell South Garage 15,878 14,761 1,117
CT Regional Market 234,976 246,108 (11,132)
Front Street District 158,108 - 158,108
Other income (CRDA) 763,258 357,744 405,514
Total operating revenues $11,689,168 $9,869,137 $1,820,031
Operating expenses:
Authority operations:
Personnel $523,130 $379,474 $143,656
General and administrative 76,090 61,120 14,970
Coronavirus relief fund expenses - - -
American Rescue Plan Act expenses - - -
Pension expense 267,198 268,826 (1,628)
Combined Facilities:
Convention Center 4,377,184 3,981,527 395,657
Parking 1,748,200 1,472,038 276,162
Central utility plant 235,866 280,587 (44,721)
XL Center 2,474,575 2,421,796 52,779
Church Street Garage 361,373 286,908 74,465
Bushnell South Garage 109,552 72,805 36,747
CT Regional Market 239,557 83,903 155,654
Front Street District 22,922 14,130 8,792
Bond administration 74,378 95,574 (21,196)
Development costs - - -
Depreciation and amortization 4,292,492 3,823,405 469,087
Total operating expenses $14,802,517 $13,242,093 $1,560,424
Loss from operations ($3,113,349) ($3,372,956) $259,607
Non-operating revenue/(expense):
Interest income $878,199 $604,493 $273,706
Interest expenses (597,029) (545,401) (51,628)
Non-operating expense, net $281,170 $59,092 $222,078
Loss before capital contributions and transfer ($2,832,179) ($3,313,864) $481,685
Capital contributions $867,879 $311,155 $556,724
Transfer - State of Connecticut Housing Loan Program 4,190,148 2,469,971 1,720,177
Change in net position $2,225,848 ($532,738) $2,758,586
Net position, beginning of quarter $310,400,917 $286,427,837 $23,973,080
Net position, end of quarter $312,626,765 $285,895,099 $26,731,666

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Housing
&
Neighborhood

Committee



30 Laurel Street, Hartford 3/21/24

Project: The acquisition and conversion of a partially occupied class B office/commercial
building located with the CRDA district but close to the Parkville neighborhood into 47 market rate
units (12 studio, 27 1BR and 8 2BR).

Developer: Spectra Construction and Development (Dan Klaynberg), 554 Fifth Ave, NY,NY

Development
Budget: Acquisition  $1,573,000
Soft Costs 969,726
Financing 869,381
Op Reserve 100,000
Dev Fee 534,609 (5.4%)
Hard Costs 5,712,892
TDC $9,759,608
Sources Sen Loan $3,900,000
CRDA loan 3,525,000
Equity 1,800,000
Def DevFee 534,609
Total $9,759,608

Request: Subordinate financing of $3.525 million at 2%, 30yr amortization

RESOLUTION: The executive director is authorized to provide financing to Spectra Construction and
Development (or such single purpose entity as approved by CRDA) for the acquisition and
conversion of 30 Laurel Street, Hartford into 47 residential units by lending up to $3.525 million at
2%/30 year amortization with construction period interest at 2%, subject to: 1/ all financing being
secured, 2/ approval of the State Bond Commission and 3/ such fiduciary terms as deemed
necessary and appropriate by the executive director and CRDA counsel.



DoNo Parcel B, Hartford 3/21/24
Amendment to CRDA Approval

Project: Phase Il, Parcel B1 of the Downtown North/Downtown Crossing was approved by CRDA
and the State Bond Commission for a $13.6M loan in 2021 and 2023 and the developer, RMS
Companies has been negotiating to complete its application for a $34M senior loan. Another
$16.9M in equity completes the Project financing. This phase includes 237 housing units and a 524-
car garage directly across the street from the Yard Goats ballpark as well as the first phase of DoNo
(the Pennant) with its 270 units and accompanying garage.

Issue; The senior lender’s underwriting calls for a three-year interest only period during
construction and the initial lease up and stabilization of the Project. The CRDA loan, as approved in
2023, allows up to a two-year interest only period and then the construction loan isto convertto a
permanent loan amortizing principal and interest at 3% for the remainder of the thirty-year term.
The senior lender requires the initial interest only period be consistent between the loans, and they
view the Project as stabilizing in year three thereby justifying the longer /O period.

RESOLUTION: The Executive Director is authorized to extend the interest only period of the $13.6M
toan to RMS (or such approved single purpose entity) for the construction of Phase Il, Parcel B1 of
Downtown North Project from a two-year period to a three-year period to be consistent with the
senior loan and its underwriting.



UOSSIUILIOD PUO DIA IAIISI XOOZS »
5109p pooysoqybiau pup doda. Bupnpsul TSEE
pun ‘dod Buisnoy wouf ¥915,
piodai sai0u,
$W/004 930y RBT + [DIIUIPISIS 153 IUNMNSLS ¢
s$as03 pup s)sodap |
vT0T/ET/E
S|qupioye gSE/ 1L DOST £t/es WS AS5TS WISLS 14982 Arwwng
—
£202/9/0T | szoz/it/s 20N MosE) NZS - JA O %E WsS[ OT/06  [xees Wes ANTVES WL'9TS 8L ‘3§ 5iMI 6T
€20L/PT/2T | €20Z/12/6 ~AOE ‘%E[ 00T NOES WIT'TS N681S Wes L8 Beld SY'TE
€zoz/9/0t | €202/81/8 ueo| UAQE/'SIAG XS TS NS'9S) OZ/08  [N1'09s WS'95 ILTPS WSE'SYS 801 AUl 0 B 0261
%ES 20T €20T/51/8 | T20Z/8/2T | 220Z/LI/TT AT ‘%€| 00T NEEES _l_zlm.nm AFIYIS  |WL9S 53 W523, 073100
810Z/1/6 | zz0Z/0Z/OT TAQE'%E| 0Z/08 |Nr'ses WE'ES XS6€S WLTS S »olg
praymolly oNoq|
v207 T20U/6L/8 | €z0z/9/0T | T2OZ/E/ZT SAoe '%e[ 0z/08 |iovs W6'SS ATTTS WE'LTS I3 GolIH]
120Z/51/2T
5202 120Z/51/2T | €zoz/et/T "AOE '%E| OT/06 [NE'LSS WI'ETS NTETS WE'E9S L8 «8. ONOQ|
vZ0Z TIOL/ST/RT | 120L/9T/y | 120U/8V/E w391 JA GTNG 9% 9Bpliq %z| OZ/08 [XT'ZvS WSETS ¥SBES  |WE€9s |99t w3 gs
NLS "Wadg A OF %2 ¥E'TES
%56 Fonuey 0202/0¢/6 | 810¢/02/6 | OZ0Z/9T/p wiat A Gy IAOE w%e| OV/06 [ILEVS WE'TTS ¥80TS  |WZ9SS  |0iT 3.°N°Q
8102/01/6
%86 Tupuey 0Z0Z/51/5 | 810%/02/6 | 8T02/0U/6 | g uen/et wiea %€ A07| 0208 |ML99S W'ES 2125 9928 520 U]
%L6 Bupuay tzoz/st/ot | 120T/3t/Y | OTOT/LU/E ueo| A OE KSL°T/ Sun By 9Tf OL/06  IS'Zvs gm ¥01ZS WE'PES iy ACWIL T - Z Beid|
/99T S3un [#304 / Ly SuN MIN
00T BuRusy TZ0Z/51/v | 6102/81/21 | 020Z/LT/6 A0S IAS %T WESBINES| 00T  |IE6S Wzis ATELS  [WB'6ZS  |6CT ECT I REDT]
T20Z/91/y | 610Z/LT/OT
%001 Bupuay 0Z0Z/0E/TT | 6T0Z/81/ZT | 610Z/0T/T akozxeueel] 00T [ug'ess WS'1$ %6928 Wes I8¢ N300
00T Jupuay 610%/9/T | 8T0Z/T1/ZT | 8102/8T/0T (AT62Z) "3A 0T %€ uwo| wiad[ 00T P'EPS aTTSS ASTTS WS'TS [33 UM 052992
HO pied- uro) 33pLg Jp0siK
%L6 7Z027/070T | 810Z/2T/v | 810Z/9%/T | L102/12/6 kor%eurel[ 00T [j09% %0965 WLEES  |WSTS IMGWINIL 00T
%001 Bupuay 8T02/62/8 | ST0Z/91/2 | 810L/Z/T 1Z/8 1593 A OE XE U0l OZ/08  |¥8'Z9S WE'TS AP'P6TS  |WS'SS 87 WH ez
00T Bupuay 8T0L/Z/L | LTI0T/6Z/1T | L10%/8T/S *IA OZ %€ uro| wiad/uojannsuey Q0T %095 W88'Z$ AEBTS WI'E 8y YN iteD)|
%98 dujuay 8TOZ/IE/OT | 6102/92/9 8102/8/8 1A ¢ % veo) wisdfuonanisuesl 0Z/08  |iECTS 2+ WI'9S Y6TES W1z 88 Ry (Tz-€01) 88
L1008t/ 9107/8/71
%96 Tuuay L107/8/TT | LI0L/TT/S | 910Z/8/TT *JA OF %€ ueo) wisdfuopaniisues] 00T |ALb'ESS W30'95 %8028 WsS'TZs  |10T e3d 111
%6 Tupuay L1oz/8/tT | L107/ZT/S | 9T0Z/8/IT “IA OF %€ Ueo) widdfuojdnnsuesl 00T  |¥g'8S$ WrZ'6S P8I Wy'82$ 33 1e3d 10T
%00% Bujuay LIOZ/LTT | 9TOT/ST/TT | L10Z/9T/E AQT %ZZWN| 00T DL'EOTS WSS JOBES WEzS 53 Yy 18
9102/0Z/0T
%38 Bujuay 9T0Z/TE/E | STOZ/TT/ZT | S102/5T/0T 1202/ @insopaso} ‘vossipey sawsod| 00T [yzzes WS'9$ Te WS'6TS 9% whiAY
%56 upuay L102/62/6 | 9t0z/ve/E | stoy/erfT IAOT '%E> ueo]| OF/OL [N99$ Wrs WARSY 04|
STOZ/8T/9
%001 Bupuay 0202/21/21 | STOZ/BYL | OZOL/EL/TT JASz%g urol| 00T NL6TS AL6TS UIRN £8-6L2T
6102/02/6 LIOZ/CE/TT
9102/6/6 9102/9%/9
S10Z/12/S
%99 Tuiiiay S10Z/ST/T | ¥10L/SUL | 910Z/8T/T “IAog %¢ veoi[ 00T A5'T9S WSEGYES ¥90Z5 WET'TS 9 wi3 Zr-gt
»102/61/9
%00T Fupuey S107/8/v | vIOZ/ST/L | v10T/6T/9 *3A O %€-T uro| Wiadjuopanisucd|  OOT X05$ JOOES A90ES W8'TS B ST 9¢
%66 Bupusy s10Z/z2/6 | StOZ/LL/E | Y1OT/61/9 A QT '%S" 'sumo| Z[ OT/08 |%S'Z9S Wis %062 WE'SES (333 1o3Ee3 06€
%96 Tupuay ST0Z/0E/9 | vroz/ot/tt | £202/91/2 SiouoteBuow| 02/08 |0695 WO'SS ¥6SES WT'9Zs (7 =15
v102/82/2 | ¥IOZ/ST/T 03 paLIaAUES/BuppURLY LORINIISUGY
%6 Tupuay €10Z/5/2T | €T0Z/TUY9 €10Z/v/9 HOPitd 210N | ST/S8 |X9'0TS WSO'TS NETTS W6'ETS 06T *13edg/esaucs
%8 Tapuey €I0T/ST/TT § €T0Z/12/9 | zz0Z/ve/e oz U OZ/08 |NEOTS WS'9S HEETS (G €9 URv 64T
£100/12/€ "7 ESTPIL NG T3 AIAGS WEZ ']
%98 Bujuay £102/62/0T | €10L/1L/8 €10/52/y HOPIed 31oN| 00T 28825 NOSLS/WE'ES |AZ0TS WSP'pS 9T PuRID/uLY 10T
£I07/17/¢
%86 Supuay YTI0L/BY/E | ETOUET/E | €10Z/08/T aBeRuow puz WZ'OTS] 0T/08  [xzss [wezs A962$ WS'v8S S8BT CIRIN £LL|
Aijnba W5'7§
\pesee] pasay  [uojssuiue) | jsaciddy ®InINAS uids | wun/S$vawd | awyvawd | wunsoal ELTS aun wejoid
puog “P8 ¥ayd WY/ ]

panoiddy BuisnoH vayd



NAN
o

qoyai g * |puoibay TTT PIOJUDH EET «
9J0U OPUOI YOSHS |DIAUI UO P3AJjO. }S333Ul YIM XS8PS 10 3IUDIDG MIN
ajps wouf ajou Jo umophnd ,

vzoe/st/e
ey Aewwng
v202 V/N €20281/S HY9/DIN T JAoz %E| SL/ST |MOOTS 3008% NTTIES W6Y'T$ 8 Aueqjy 069
¥20t €20z/Se/s | 810T/1/9 | €20T/91/t UBIO ¥O0TZS d8eraH|  HY  [N9'99S M00ES NETIS WLE'TS € wnjAsy /v
ueo YOSTS 38erssH
PloS €202 €202/ST/S | 810Z/1/9 | €zoT/9t/t Jues )oss d8eluaH|  HY  |N0SS MOSTS NS9SS NS9SS T As|ysv 62
€202 V/N 720Z/0Z/0T | V4HD Yyim wis)-0d ueo ] %z spund AN | HY  |NZTS WTS X0ST$ WE'TZS v8 SUOWIWIOD pJoypag
$202 €20z/st/t v/N TZ0Z/TZ/0T | UMOPANG %T + 'SIA0Z %S TSPund A [ BN [NS€L$ WN98CS NTYTS$ Wot'6$ Se [4ead S22
vzoz zeoz/te/e V/N T20Z/TZ/0T | UMopAng %T + "SJA 0 %S°T spund Aud | 0z/08  [M0SS WTZS %98T$ W8LS [A4 193135 UIRIN GZS
%001 paumo Teoe/s/t V/N 1202/12/T “JA ST %€ @8eBHOW IST[  BIW  [N9ZTS OTYS M00ES 006$ € uUIMET €T
€202/S/S 220Z/LT/T1
PIOS 78 %8 08 paumo Te0z/Le/L | 8102/1/9 | Tzoz/st/s 12)ieN (YNIN) 28BI3H|  MIN [M00TS 00Z$ N60YS NBIBS z uioyimeH zg8-08
PIoS 28 '8 98 paumQ 610Z/€T/8 | 810T/1/9 | 810Z/¥E/S BV (VNIN) sswoH a8ejuaH|  Hv  [NSZ$ 0SS ABTHS M0ESS 4 uioyimeH 88-98
plos paumo 610TZ/€T/8 | 8102/1/9 | 810Z/¥T/S 3|qepIOyY - SSWOH a8elusH|  HV M0SS N00Z$ N062$ WIT'TS ¥ Asuinosis
LITBSTI , ueo1 38pug ISIH 000°00Z$ LTT-STT
%00T Sunuay 8102/L/S V/N 9102/8/CT spung jeude) “4A G 330U UONINAISUOD|  BIAL |NOSS N00Z$ MOSTS W66'1S v wnjAsy Ty
%00T Sunuay 1202/82/10 V/N 810¢/z/€0 ‘Ho pred usag sey ajoN| DIN |N9SS DNS8YS V8IS Wrip'Ts |8 wn|Asy 687
8T0Z/€T/9 910Z/8/T1
%S8 Sunuay 810Z/v¢/S | 9t0Z/05/6 V/N pyueqn| BN [N9TYS WSS P44 WLZ$ 111 aueaq se|ls
%L6 Sunuay €T0T/LT/2T | LO0T/TT/TT V/N wesd@d3aal P»W  [dT66S NZTS MOTES WL'SES 114 193435 U044
Aouedninp Auedning pasopd uoissiwwo) | jeaosddy JInPnas nids wun/$ vayd | wyvayd | nun/Hal JaL syun paloid
1934eL puog ‘pg vayd HY/DIN #

$321n0s Suipung panep - panoiddy SuisnoH vayd




[\

@

v20Z/€T/¢€
0£8'695°SS
Butso|) Butpuad VN €202/€2/6 | €£202/61/6 "JA OE/ue0 %E A/vayd 000°000°€$ 09'21$ SHUN MU LS mawojoyueg /T
qeY3Y JLI0ISIH
Juawdo|anag-ald £202/91/¢ | €70Z/0T/€ | €202/6/€ Alnb3/ueoy 000°005°SS INTZS 193(01d asn paxiw UORINIISUCI MU puejpoom/Aueqiy
Wrs 40 Zueg
*35U02 Jo ueys Buipuad ‘pasold €z0z/9/v | €zoe/ot/e | ezoz/ot/e ueo pun4 Butajoaas A3 Auedwodde o3 ueo 000°005°8% W06$ [RI2J3WWOD SR|d SIUN SET ‘AUCH uol|jWweH SEZ
qeyay Jlo3siH
Bupuad Juwdy Issy TeoT/1e/s Vv/N v/N spun4 jueln 39V uequn 000°000'T$ +NTS uoI3eJ0153Y 3jdaas Yauny) Auqn
AUD/vQuD sa10u omi 000'000°€$ Syun €51
UOLIRAISUCS Ul TeoT/ee/L | TzoT/eT/S | Teoe/i/v pooyJoqyaisN 000°005€S W9'TY$ '$91 03 sBUIp|Ing Z JO UOISIAUC) ysnag Jajn4
000°000'Z$
yoday
Suipuny pauep Suisnoy aas sapuadosd ajdinw £20Z/€/2 Bulutewal N9'TS ‘e3Je |[IH wWnjAsy ul diysioumo awoH a3ejiay
810Z/1/9 | 810Z/v2/S | 8T0Z/11/S sjuesd pue sueol pooyloquaiaN LTAd 000°005°2$ veL 3WOY aseAIIU) OF YNIN BIA 3JUR3SISSY
pajs|dwod 8102/5¢/L weJ3oud Buuteny smoja4 Andas pooyioqydianN (2d) Y819N 9TAI = 9'€S Tvd / 100425
40 uonejuawajdwt Joj 00°005$ S3PNIAU| |eJaUdD 9TAd = 6'ES 000°00S°L$ ws'LS 100YS J[PPIL J3U.O; JO UOIIBAOUDY A[PPIW HIIND
SI0M
pajajdwo) 8102/0Z/6 | 810Z/12/9 N 3315 '3 UOIRI0I53 I1I0ISIY HIOM JOLIAIXA 10} JURID [BI3UBD 9T A4 000°05t$ weTs J23u3) Yieay
Ajje1dads o3u) Bup|Ing JULILA JO UCIIBAOUIY AeQ ey
“yed 3|02 duuoqy3djau e
apelu aq o) sapesBdn |euoyppy ‘9oURIIUS YIS MAU
*pJOsIIRH JO AYD UM uoi3dunfucd ul padojaasp ag 0y pue sapeJ3dn yQy pue 3po3 3uip|ing ‘sai3iiaey JaY20]
UOIEAOUS YiRd 310 JO 3d0dS "33331YaJe Ay pue (9SH) dnoig PUB WIOOJISJ ‘SUCISSIIUCS O} sapesddn ‘WalsAs
pajajdwo) $U0d§ pJojueH Yim uoI3ouniuod Ul auop ag 03 Ui e oM punos g 3uinysy| ‘Bupeas papesddn ‘siaysealq jo
810Z/9T/z | 8107/8/T | 810Z/¢T/T | S}28/3U02 UORANASUOD PlOY pue SUOIEAOUSI 33513A0 03 YQYD | pooyioqyBIaN LTAS 000°000°0T$ worg | uSwusIqInaLdo X 1623 ‘piay jo 2 = IPEIS UG
8uipnjou) “WNIPeIS JO UCIRBAOUSS PUE JUaWaBeue N
pateldwon LT02/62/TT | cToz/st/s | ctoz/si/e 153]61d adeds3aa11s 9AY AUeq|y JuauI[dwod [auoz 3s1wo14g) 000°5258 a1 ssauisng pu3 FECNT
pue Buipung 3UOZ IsIWI0I4 |BI3PS4 YdJet 03 Ppasn spung pooyioqydiaN 9TAS YUON 03 uoi3aauuos Sufjqes 3ausaiul paads ySiH| uiew faay Aueqy
*3NUBAAI [eIU)
pazaaloud Jo %08 ueyy ss3) ou (q) 1o aseds 1afoid ajgeses|
40 %05 uey3 ss3| ou 1oy (e) sase3a| Jueua) Jo UoRNIAX uodn
3U2BUnUOI SPUNY "¥Y¥I %E YIM [eded 531 JO |[e paAladal spooyioqydiau |euassy Aejd
‘panssi 0d LT0Z/TT/S | L10Z/9T/€ | LT0Z/OT/E |sey y@yDd (1IUn Wil 1e3A-0Z B J3A0 INUNUO ||eys JudWwAed (auoz asiwoud) 000°00€'v$ wyzes pue Aueq|y Jaddn ‘3seayoN ay3 Buinias Asopes Yyims
‘suo13nNqu3sip pasinbal Jay10 1 3214135 1Gap uBI| ISy pooyloqyBian 9TA4 LANH Uoneal) qor pue pood Ajunwwo),
40 JuawAed Jagje ysed 3|qe|IBAR JIU JO %0L IAIRII O3 YAUD oju1 Aojdey JL0ISIY JO uoneAouay
‘uonezijiqels uodn Ajyzuow pied 3q pue ¥dv %T (et
ue Buisn paje[najes adIALaSs 3Gap WINWIUIW - UBO] WE' S
61/0Z/9 uo
PROJ 10J YPSTS [RUOHIPPE (auoz asiwoud) 19346 yoniedneN uo sawoy patdnaso
paja|dwos peoy LI02/T/T | 9T02/8/2T [9102/0T/T1T | paacidde pseog ‘peos palinbas 39n1suod o} pasn adue(eg pooyloqydian 9TAS 000'SSS‘TS wy/'Es -13uMo AjilEy-OM] HT JO UOIIINIISUOD [louy nadesg
'530] Buisnoy Joj saBieya UORIIUUOI HAN 10} PIsn 098°0ZS
{pooyJoqy3iau s||iH an|g) 192435 AQuUeJD uo
inids# S3UN PIUMO PUB |BILAI MBU T6 JO UOIIINIISUOD jiegd sapmog
paja|dwiod yaud 9107/0€/6 | 910Z/S1/6 | 910Z/6/6 uontjowap Joj Juesd wes pooyioqysaN 9TA4 000°000°S$ wos 13 393fo1d Buisnoy 3uUn-QT Y J0 uonIoWag
snyess |eaosddy pieog jeacuddy aNNIS spung voyd unowy yqay) oaL uondynsag pafoid
uoIsS|LIWo) vayd /MYWWoy
puog

s329fo4d pooysoqyliaN vayd




Regional
&
Economic Development
Projects

Committee

(29



\Ww,
N

vzoz/et/e

ueol NOW A3D YOOES
£20Z/¥1/21 €202/9/21 €202/6/11 ueo| yayd W't 000°00L'T$ 199.3§ JUOI4 O UCIIEIOAL JURINE)SDY uesnesay s,auoqle)
TZ0T/ET/L
Aemuapun uoidnaIsuo) ozoz/1z/L | €zoz/ot/e £202/6/¢ Aynb3 / ueoy 000°005°s$ 198/0.d 3sn paxIW ‘UoIIINIISUOD MBN puejpoopm/Aueqiy
ueo| Tued
Aemiapun 3I10M efu T202/91/9 7z0Z/L/T spung AlD 000°000'vS UEO| |e3URILOIAUZ 1§ UOIIINIISUCD UOIWRH £-$ET
Aemuapun uondnsuod efu TzoT/ve/e | Teoz/i/t ueot 000°000T$ }JOM 1018A3|3 puog
SWOoY QLT
9202 YoJeN Ul Bujuado paydadx3 - AesuBpUN YJOM 1202/12/21 | 1202/ST/TT | T20Z/e/et ueo] 000°00T’S$ PUBIQ M3U 01 [2304 JO UOISIZAUO) 33112jqnoq/uoyIH
(ap1s sospuim/piojuier)
Aemiapun BupaauiBus ‘PaINPaYDS JIOM LIS 8102/02/6 - - PIV-UIuRID 000°520°'T$ Hi8d SPISISAN 10 YO H|EMISAY asnydesay
PJOjIIeH O3 UCISUBIXD JO JUBWdO[aASP | dseUd
JUOILIIAY
pieday 210N
uado 610z/2/y | 6102/0T/T | 810T/0Z/ZT ueo 33plg / uondNIIsUOD 000°005'€$ 13jJeN Asunwiwo) WYIe 3jjiayied
saaAojdwa a1e3s Joj uado adesen 8102/07/6 - - dold yayd 000°000°2T$ E):1:31:15) adeaeo yInos jpuysng
S JO JUBWAO[IAIP YIIM IIUBISISSY (IS
8313|dwod 310J VAY¥D 40 UONI|OWSp pue JUSWIaleqe JO UCIeJISIURUPY 3§
12d0|aAap [BUBPISL YIIM UOIRIIOBU Ul UMOL e/u €10Z/51/1 e/u juel spjayumolg 033a 000°000°7$ IPI9M [BUOREN - UOIBUIMIN
adesen YUON 1§ JU0.L4 IB sjuawanoidw| a3esed]
paiejas g Buyooidiarem pue syuawasosdul
paia|dwo) 8107/52/¢ - - unypuadxs yayd 193419 000'000'€S 98euleIp WIOLS ‘UONIBSIBIUL SNQUINGOD /104 VIS I93NS oLy
1B sjuawanoidwy jjemssold g uineq
ozoz/ie/L
810Z/11/21 sjuawanoidwi g Juawdo|arapal
TZ/€ pieog o3 pajuasaid Lioday groz/sz/L - - ple-ul-uess 000°00S'T$ 104 uBisap g Buiuueld 13)JelA jeuciday piojleH
snyexs 1eaciddy |eaosddy teacsddy NS unowy yaud vopdpssaq Paloid
uoISS|WWo) | pieog ¥ayd | 23nwwo)
puog

sP3foid wawdoPA3g J1ouod3 pue jeuoiday vayd




2N
o

(

920 ‘87 "G94 PasO)) vZ0Z/81/1 %E ueo] WIS uonsinbay pue) 05 [19uysng
Bujpuag £202/9/TT %G Ueo] N00ES 2oy Juesnesay sIuogie)
3uiso]) Buipudg £202/12/6 %E uEoy WSTS SUUN LS mawojoyyieq LT
Fuisop) Juipusg £20Z/12/6 lueln NZ'SS adesen maN mauio|oyeg §g
UO{}INIISUOD U} 20/61/S %z ueo) WES UO[SIAUOD ysnJig J3||n4
Waludojasaq 3esue) £202/9T/¢ et WS UOIIINIISUO) |1dY MaAN pue|poop Aueqly
VaHD Buipuad 7202/1Z/0T %z ueoy WIS SUUN BV GEY3Y SUOLIWIOD Pi0jPaE
UoRINLISUOD U TZ02/T2/0T "SIk 0Z "%S'T ueo W9B'Z$ 19104 uo} 3 Buisnon 14eag 5.7
UonINISUod U| 120Z/12/0T *$IA 07 ‘%52 ueoy or'zs uoisIaAu) Buisnoy ulely 525
>NEUBC: jiom NN\m .twmo_u ueo] NNON\w.n\m ueoq S_Qm n:.:uu_u "0JIAUT g UOIIINJISUO) T Ueg-uoljiwey /-GE7
smejs [eaosddy ‘pg vaud NPNNS unowy uonddsaq Paloig
s129l01d ueOT SUIA|OARY YAYD-ALD
€202/9/v 720¢/L1/TT papupsa  §y/SS WEvs WZ9§ SST MW
7202/62/L 8102/91/9 paidxal  01/06 WSS WL'BTS 0T uonNIsU0) 007
B102/S2/L 8102/12/9 PapuIasas 44V WSTS$ W8'ES 8 Aueq|y v12-065
- 2202/91/9 Bupueuy e . WSES WS [ IR UAYITG
8102/1/9 810Z/12/9 Bupwwesdosdas " WIS s lleN uozlion piojuey 15e3
9T02/2T/L
£102/12/9 €107/52/% papuisaz 00T XSLSS WLTS 9T WniASY 687
¥102/91/TT €102/61/6 papuPsas 00T 68775 WL'LTS (3 uofinifisuo) €
»102/82/2
6102/92/9 610Z/12/€ L10Z/81/S papuias3s 001 %008$ WS'Z$ 3 SAIIAM £-S0T
L102/62/1T
uoIssjIWIOo) 12a0addy “pg vaud |enjul uojPY nids WY vayd oalL N # afoid
puog HY/OIW
$393(04d PapuIdSaY vayd
R0 WTS/Vaud Wzs
»2/82/T Pasod v/IN #202/81/T ueo|JAg NES WST'ES N puey 8jquiasse o3 ueo] uonisinbay
Inos |jauysng
Aemiapun ss330.d Lo|1I3[3s IS 8102/02/6 |810Z/02/6 310U MOJj Ysed pue uecy 000'005'8$ | wizzzs N 1035 Ajadoug qnH AYljeaH - oNoa
sme3s feacaddy paeog NPNAIS unowy vayd JalL Jauoz uopdidsaq Paloid
uojssjwwo) vayd JIS|WoLd
puog

s3afoad Judwdojanapay vayud




Venue

Committee

e XL Center
o P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field

e Connecticut Convention Center



Pandemic Bonus: Traveling attractions fuel comeback for Hartford’s... https://www.hartfordbusiness.com/article/pandemic-bonus-traveling-a...

1 of3

Pandemic Bonus: Traveling attractions fuel
comeback for Hartford’s major event venues

By Andrew Larson

After the pandemic lull, Hartford’s major event venues have returned to, or eclipsed, pre-pandemic
levels of attendance and revenue, partly due to a boost from traveling shows and attractions that
helped fill a void during their downtime.

The operators of the XL Center, Pratt & Whitney Stadium at Rentschler Field and the Connecticut
Convention Center pivoted during the pandemic, and in its immediate aftermath, partnering with
companies that produce globetrotting attractions — events they might not normally consider.

Now, these shows will continue to boost attendance and revenue, even as regular events return, said
Ben Weiss, general manager at Oak View Group, which manages events at the XL Center
and Pratt & Whitney Stadium. YL

“The events that I deal with are back to pre-pandemic levels, or better, to be honest,” Weiss said. “I
mean, some of the frequency of live events is back t0 100%-plus.”

XL Center events generated $17.2 million in revenue during the 2023 fiscal year, the same amount
as in fiscal year 2019. The venue’s revenue dropped below $12 million in fiscal year 2020, and in
fiscal year 2021 it was under $1 million.

Meanwhile, the Connecticut Convention Center had revenue of $3.3 million in fiscal year 2023 —
about $1 million higher than in 2018 and 2019. Attendance last fiscal year (406,822) also eclipsed
2018 and 2019 levels, although the overall number of events (108) was lower.

One of the touring attractions that helped propel Hartford area venues through the pandemic was
“Jurassic Quest,” an interactive dinosaur-themed experience, which returns to the Connecticut
Convention Center March 1 to March 3.

During the pandemic,“Jurassic Quest” — originally planned to be held inside Pratt & Whitney
Stadium — was moved to the stadium’s parking lot as a drive-thru event.

It was a soaring success, attracting about 15,000 vehicles full of people anxious about leaving their
homes, but grateful for family-friendly entertainment that gave them an opportunity to venture
outside, while remaining socially distanced.

Also, “Jurassic Quest” a success from a financial standpoint because it generated revenue from an
event that otherwise would have been canceled.

“You can call it like a bonus,” Weiss said.

The next year, as restrictions eased, “Jurassic Quest” moved several miles away to the Connecticut
Convention Center, where it continues to draw crowds.

More content creators ( | Zq /

b
s

2/22/2024, 1:41 PN



Pandemic Bonus: Traveling attractions fuel comeback for Hartford’s... https://www.hartfordbusiness.com/article/pandemic-bonus-traveling-a...

The show includes scientifically accurate animatronic dinosaurs, created in collaboration with
paleontologists, along with live shows and demonstrations, such as fossil digs.

“Jurassic Quest,” owned by Texas-based Family Quest Entertainment, has three touring units that
hit 130 cities across the United States and Canada each year. The company is also working to
develop an international unit, said Jeff Munn, an entertainment executive who was recently
appointed CEO of Family Quest.

Each unit contains 15 semi-trailers, packed with dinosaurs and activities, and buses that carry 30
full-time employees who operate the events. In addition, the company hires 30 to 40 temporary
workers locally for each event.

“We'll do the show and then as soon as the show’s over on Sunday night, they load everything back
up into the wee hours of the morning,” Munn said. “And then the trucks are off first thing Monday
on to the next destination.”

PHOTO | CONTRIBUTED

“Jurassic Quest,” an interactive dinosaur-themed experience, returns to the Connecticut
Convention Center March 1 to March 3.

Munn said there are more traveling attractions like “Jurassic Quest” entering the events space, in
response to consumer demand. He said his company has acquired a LEGO-themed attraction,
called “Brick Fest Live,” which he hopes to bring to Hartford.

“After decades of being in this industry, I've never experienced so many options in the market,”
Munn said. “I'm finding that families are more discriminant than ever, they also demand more than
ever, and so the value proposition we offer is critical.”

At the XL Center, Weiss said he’s also seeing more of these types of shows, which he believes are an
offshoot of the pandemic.

“There are more content creators and producers out there than I can recall,” Weiss said. “I think
people want to be out and doing events. I think it’s the hangover effect of COVID. People were stuck
inside wanting to do things, and that kind of lifted off as we saw the great explosion of people
outside partaking in activities.”

The success of the drive-thru “Jurassic Quest” event gave birth to Pratt & Whitney Stadium’s other
drive-thru event, the holiday-themed “Magic of Lights” show, which debuted in 2021.

Weiss said Magic of Lights is also popular, and he expects it to continue as an annual tradition.

The company that produces “Magic of Lights” is New York-based Family Entertainment Live, which
also produces a “Hot Wheels Monster Trucks Live” show, set to appear at the XL Center March 23
and March 24.

Without the pandemic, Weiss said he wouldn’t have been connected with the company.
CT Convention Center

The drive-thru lights show is complemented by “Glow Hartford,” an indoor holiday light festival at
the Connecticut Convention Center.

=
Glow Hartford debuted in 2022 after being delayed due to the pandemic. It returned in 2023 ar(Q_ /

of 3 2/22/2024, 1:41 PM



Pandemic Bonus: Traveling attractions fuel comeback for Hartford’s... https://www.hartfordbusiness.com/article/pandemic-bonus-traveling-a...
sold close to 50,000 tickets, making it one of the venue’s most popular events.

Overall, the Connecticut Convention r ower to return to its pre-pandemic event

frequency because many of its conventions are held cyclically, on yearly rotations, and are booked
g_erars in advance, said Michael Costelli, general manager of the facility.

In the meantime, the Connecticut Convention Center has filled voids with traveling shows like

“Beyond Van Gogh: The Immersive Experience” and “Beyond King Tut: The Immersive Experience”

— both produced by Paquin Entertainment Group, based in Winnipeg, Manitoba.

“The exhibit hall became available during times that traditionally it’s not available because of
COVID, so it created this vacuum,” Costelli said.

He said the convention center proactively looked for these types of traveling events to fill space
during open intervals.

“If it wasn’t for the pandemic, we probably would have never gotten to be partners with them,”
Costelli said. “So, I think that relationship will surely lend itself towards doing more business here
at the convention center.”

As regularly scheduled conventions and shows return, traveling events may become less common.
Conventions tend to fill up the hotels, like the adjacent Hartford Marriott Downtown, and attract
visitors to the city for days at a time — often from out-of-state or even international locales.

Events like “Beyond Van Gogh” might draw people from across Connecticut, but they tend not to
stay overnight.

“They’re great shows, but they’re day-trippers,” Costelli said. “Our job is to fill hotel rooms as well
as bringing day-trippers.”

Starting next summer, the Connecticut Convention Center won’t have as much downtime as it did
this year, Costelli said. However, when there is downtime in the winter, popular events will return.

“Jurassic Quest is a totally different animal and they’ll come pretty much any time of the year,”
Costelli said. “They’ll come whenever we have space available.”

The Connecticut Convention Center also has consumer shows interspersed between conventions
and day-tripper events. Those include the Connecticut Flower and Garden Show, held Feb. 22 to
Feb. 25, which attracts people from all over the Northeast.

“The economic impact can be very drastic between a day-tripper and an overnighter,” Costelli said.
“We have to find that happy mix. You're never going to have 100% conventions. It’s just
impossible.”

&Y

30f3 2/22/2024, 1:41 PM



Executive Director

@



QMY

March 4, 2024

The Honorable Arunan Arulampalam, Mayor
City of Hartford

500 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

Mr. Michael Freimuth, Executive Director
CRDA / Capital Region Development Authority
100 Columbus Boulevard, FL 5

Hartford, CT 06103

RE: Formation of a Bushnell South Project Oversight Committee

Dear Mayor Arulampalam and Mr. Freimuth,

On behalf of the South Downtown NRZ (SoDo), | write to request the creation of a Project Oversight Committee for
the Bushnell South Project: redevelopment of properties on Elm, Trinity, Clinton, West, Buckingham, Cedar,
Wadsworth, and Hudson Streets, and Capitol Avenue between Bushnell Park, Washington Street, Park Street, and
Main Street. We also request that this committee, chaired by CRDA, include representatives from the SoDo NRZ,
the City, Hartford NEXT Inc., and other such stakeholders as those organizations consider necessary.

This request is prompted by recent events that have immediate and long-term implications for the SoDo
neighborhood. The Bushnell South Master Plan and Implementation Strategy published by Goody Clancy in
October 2021 was enthusiastically received by the neighborhood and SoDo NRZ. it embraced the urban planning
goals of SoDo’s 2011 Neighborhood Plan. The City of Hartford has now funded and retained FHIC, an urban
planning consultancy, to help SoDo update its Strategic Plan and its Neighborhood Plan. As we proceed to update
our plans, we are very concerned that the recent presentations by the Michaels Organization for their portion of
Bushnell South depart significantly from the vision of the Bushnell South Master Plan. Their plans include
significant amounts of surface parking on the interior of the site. Also, David Fey, President of Bushnell Center for
the Performing Arts recently expressed a need for additional parking at the corner of Capitol Avenue and Hudson
Street in contravention of the district parking vision that was described in the Bushnell South Master Plan.

Parking remains the single-most significant issue that threatens to undermine the basic integrity of this
transformative project, which seeks to establish a pedestrian-friendly streetscape. We would appreciate the
opportunity to review the parking requirements that CRDA is relying upon to guide the developers’ planning and
the District Parking Plan for our neighborhood, if such requirements exist. We remain committed to mitigating
existing friction points and eager to expand the residential, cultural, social, and recreational resources within
SoDo. The “live, work, and play” dynamic should define the character of our neighborhood.

Please accept this letter as an affirmation of SoDo’s appreciation for all CRDA and the City have done. We look
forward to collaborating with you to make this vision a reality. We'd also welcome you to join us for our monthly
NRZ meetings: 6pm, the 3™ Wednesday of each month, at 136 Capitol Avenue.

Sincerely,

%

Presiden
South Downtown NRZ
SoDo-Hartford.com
cc: Randal P. Davis, Deputy Director of Development Services, City of Hartford
Robert P Houlihan, Director of Design & Construction Services, CRDA



Construction Report

March 2024



T4 adeg

$Z0Z/8T/€ YeIQ v TZ°E 3iepdn uoNINAISUO)

‘goeds JueINEISA JS 000'S

puE SHUN [ERUSPISAS 8/ OJUI PAHIAUOD B4 0} Bulpling 2040 JUBJBA ON %0| - 000'8¥8°'91L 000'€y 8L 1934 sima Gl
‘$Z0Z Ae S! 31ep VElS 3(NPaYos
"yBnoJLp Niem [eniul 4o} $Z0Z/02/20 ‘SHun woolpaq
18d0[PAR(/IBUMD UM 139W JEBIS VAU D -3U0 PUE OIPNIS O}l SOBAS |BIBIWICD/SOIO JO UOISIBAUCD oN %ol - $O¥'LL0'S £ 19908 Beld SP/LE
P313dUIOOD SI SIOM [BIUSWIUOIIAUD WOS "$assao0ud
‘agL 8InpPayds uononIsSucd uoneasasasd SuoISIY pue |2imaaIyose YBnosy Bunuom aie pue
‘Buisop uo Buniem Aguaung “Jadojaasp|  Zd Pasea aAey Aoy -eoeds |erosawwod snid spun [eRuapisas
BY} YUM JOEUCO dpeW SBY YOHD 001 CJul PaBALOO 3q |IM MalANIE Ul Auadaud jeuisnpul abie| v ON %0| - 8EE'€2E'ST 112°29 00L mawoloyueq 691
"PAULYUCD 3q O} $Z0Z ABW/IudY
0 @ajep ues pajedidonue ‘uonEINP YIUoW 1509 pajebpng yim Buole pauleigo
Z1L SMOUS 9INPaYOS UORINASUOD Judund SEM 3|Npayds uononisuod ‘sBumelp pamaiaal sey JelS vYadd ON %0| - 169°02L2°TL 0€Z'LE |44 peaymoly
agl| -einpayds [Buo) B Joj JadojeAsg UM J9aw o) Buisop uo Bunrepn ON %0| - 000'229'0} Z9%'ZL S8 suapJes) pJojpag
‘Bunuted pue 'Buiud YoM Wiy
Buipnout SUBWHEdE OM) BU) UO SOUBLULIOD MOU ||IM YJOM Usiulg
‘sjuaLede [BRUSPISSS OM) AL} JO) UO pauIn} USaQq Sel 3JNISS
SBO '3SN MAU U} 3BPOWIIODIE 0} PaLWeld) usaq sey Buiping
'$Z0z Merugad “awoy Afiwey-aaiy patdnaoo-1sumo ue ojul asnoy Buiwoos e awoy
103 paINPaLRS ASUEANIO0 JO S1EDYAIAD| Wa BSNOH Ulduilig SNUIT SOISIY BU} 3in6yUODA fiim 193f0.d SIuL SOA %09 000'65L°L ovs'8 Apwe; 8314 YNIN WHASY Lt8
" pajaidwod usaq UOISIDAUOD)
'$202/20/€0 SeM Bumng uoqary sBY 901 3/GNOQ O} UOHIH WO} UOISI2AUOD "813dwiod st 109foid SOA %66 - £98'¢06't 991 9311 -3|qnoq - UolIH
‘$Z02/20/€0 Sem Bumny uoqaly ‘Aemuspun aJe sigjua; pue paiaidwod udaq sey joeloid ON %66 - 000'028'Z1 zan siuawuedy - UOlIH
"219|dwWwoo §1 JOOY "8IS UO PaJo}s S uawdinb3 [eoieydsiy
w9 Bunybi] “peouswwod sey |emAsp pue passed aAey /L ®
(QgL) @nosiaAl| 9 s100) uo uondadsu ybnoy 'siooy ¥ saddn uo uy ybnos Busuuibaq
wozj Jamod Jusueusad uo JusBuguod| || aJe S3pRIL d3W "L-€ SI00Y 313(dwoD st ybBnoJ JopuIo) JVAH
aJe S31Ep 888U PZOZ/L0/I0 J0)|  I1RIan0 9BElS [jEISUl %09 € 1e SI Buipiing ulep "UOHIIGWOD $Z02
pajnpayos Buiping UIBW UNM pZ0Z/L0/P0|  idY JOf BINPAYDS LD X3UUY 'PIj[EISUL Buiaq Apuasuno saouedde
Xauuy JO UONBGWOD 104 SHED BNPaYDS | pue saJnix)y yum saysiuy jo sabers jeuy ui S| Buipjing (xauuy) ssaid S\ Yoll| LZB'EVS GZL'¥CS'6E ¥91 wi3 65
‘Buiqunid 5N Joj Buniem
$202/0L uo [eALse Jeab ‘a1ajdwos Buiyduas uawaseq "%001L I8 S! oM Spede) JoUsIX3
[eowoaje bulpuad ¥zoz AInr uonaidwod ‘9%0L 18 S1 DVAH '4Bnoy %08 Je s10108u0) 33d Ui Buobuo
SMOYS 3jNPIYDS UONONASUOD JUBLND s1 %0M YBNoY JdIW "S100|) i U pajaIdwoo st Buiwe; ybnoy S %99| - 992'005'L 86E'LE 5¢ 19348 pesd 5.2
*'p 9 ¢ sI00y Joj passed aaey suondadsuy jem ybnoy ‘pajedionue
‘paacsdde usaq sey ‘jeawse Jeab Joy uey) Jamols Buinow JOBIRUOD DVYAH O} NP Pamols sey
Buniem sjym ‘2unbByuoo Jamod Aiesodwa} 199014 "SHSUO PAICIS AJB SJBUIGED PIOUSLULWOD SBY UOREIOIS)
10} WHNd 01 uas uonestddy "uogsidwod MOPUIM pUB D3IOISaL BJB §100( ANUT 'p 3 € SIO0Y UO papeIs
leuy oedw {m JBas) [Bou0aI3 sey yoonaayg "paybnas Arequeisqns ase sapesl 38d ‘Bulofuo
"$Z0Z AInp 40} St uopajdwod 1oaloud ayL S1 UOHB(IEISU| J¥A 'SI0pUIOD Ul paybna sey Joenuo) QVAH SBA %9L| - 060'1€0'9 0.5'62 Zy 12801S WBW SZ§
: : 1E ; - s108l01d BujsnoH Va0
o|npayds smms| Buipuni|  dwod % 09 | uoponnsuod pieH 49|  swun Ksewwng 309(01d

yzoz/ /e

31epdf) UORONSUOD




Z#a8ed

v202/81/€ ¥eIQ vZ'1T°E Aepdn :o_u_:ﬁc.no\]//

Y
Ry oo

‘paIndas

s1 Buipuny uaym aouaWWoo o} Buippig
‘'SUOREPUBWIWOD3) AYISUdp paseasoul
papinosd pue ueid Juawdoeasp

jo| 91 pasodoid pamainal seY Ya¥O ‘PIINOAX3 US3G Sy PeNuod YMD ON %0 QgL | 08€'se "owa( |00ydg UREBDIW
%202 udv| ‘ajep o} paja|dwoo aJe sJed ¢ jo 2 ‘Buiobuo $30UapISAY puog
10 puo pajaIdwod 3q O} YoM JOJeAd|3 SI UOHE|EISUI ‘PRISAIISP USSG SABY SUIYOBW JOJBASID MBN (€) SBA %SE 000'00S ay| -19ang wWniksy gee
JajUIM
‘bz0zZ| Jono Alfeolpouad ays JoJUOW [IIM YQND $20Z Buuds u uiBag Iim yawbag pnoy Bury
Ae Aq pateidwoo aq |im Buined jeuid| Buined jeutd ‘pajajdwion usaq sey yom abeurelp punoibiapun iy ON %08 000'260'} 1oaloid abeuiesg ‘H'3
"paIndas
1 BuIpUN UORONNSUOD JBUCHIPPE PUE ABY UI PaAIZoRs aue shuuad
20z Buudsg u uels pInod uoRJNASUCD di109 Ay Jt ¥Z0Z IR} 918] U1 UEYS PINOD uoganasuo) ‘esodosd
-ssaooud Bunuad au Jo Ausw aiy Je si|aoiuas e papiacid pue Apris WY IN SUj JOj JUBYINSUODQNS B PAINO3S (ueoj yayd Iy ) awanoidw| ped
199010 SI YEBd JALY 1B3IS) AU} YUM SY sey ‘Bupinsuo) 139 "aseyd Bunuuad ay) ul (s s1303foid ay) SOA %.2 0L0'¥ZE'L Jaary jeats) pJojueH ise3
Sj00]0.d Juswdojaaaq d1WOU0IT g jeuoibey
‘UOISSILILLIOY) UORBAIDSILd SUOISIH
A ayy pue OdHS yum suoneoydde jeacsdde jewsog S|y (I
yoInyD oy usiA 1ey) Buimoyos pue 3aam siuy 3YIs UO 39 I OdHS
‘LpuoLL Sy} JO pua 3y} Aq pajaIdwod 3q pINoys
siomjey) 'suompuod Bunsixs Bunenjeas Apuaund si pue ease
s|daa)s ay) punose Buibers paddeum pue pajdals sey JooeJuUOY OoN yaJny) Auagin
uawdopasp
ay) poddns 0} alIS 3 JO JOUAUI BY} UO PIIONASUOD 3 |IIM
saoeds Bunyed g1 Alajewixoiddy JuBUS) [BIOIBWIWOD |BUCHIDPE
s16pnq 1500 2u0 pue jueq [enuasiod e ‘Jueinelsal deosdn ue “uswyedsQ
14os,, Buimaiaal Apuaund si pue ainpayds piean AiD mau e Buisnoy ‘aps ay uo Buipiing JS-000°2€ ©
uononsuod Bunieme si yeis YAH|IONASUD M '(DAN) 11vuno) Juswdojpaa@ |euoyeN 1adojaAap ayL puRpooAn ® Aueqly
asnay
“$Z0Z JSWWNS piw dep UEIS ‘dn uesp |guUsWUOAUT Buejdwod Ajuaung (ueol vayo 1IN L) aAndepy @ UOISI9AU0D
paalold Buisop Bunieme st joslolg ‘1oaf0sd pasjem pue SjISuUO BYNOW SOPED LM JaW Jeis YYD ON %0 000'005'8 gez| -z 9seud uowen L£2
6202 1snBny J0) pajewnss
uoR3IGLWOY) "UoHEIND YIUoW 0Z ‘Buip|ing InoyBnosyy unbaq
pajedionuy ‘uona|dwod Buuesu st owsQg sey uoniowaq 'YL Aenuef sem Bunsaws Jo-yon LORdMIISUCD
9 9§ES SYBW ‘PAZIIGOW SABY SJOPEAUOD| 3)IS UO UOROMIISUOD BISXY UIM JW SBY JEIS UOROISUOD YAYD ON %0 L¥8'L€8'8Z €51 ysnig Jajind
‘gomusg Buluueld Jaisep yed apinoid o}
1OBAUOD JOPUN I SBUOL SIABSIBIBH NEMIBALY B} JO UOIONSUOD
» 919/dwoo si ssaoosd Bumiwiad LojeinBal ay) Jaye syuawnoop
PIQ UONDNIISUCD 3 JO uonajdwod - |IBN,O B SSn4 Aed o) pasn
aq [ spuny YA Bulniewsy “yed 31elg SMOPE3| JOSPUIM
10 uontod 2108 g| € Joj asea| Jeak gz e ajenobau o) anujuod (apis JospuIpMEd
‘ssaooid Aioe|nBasl 433Q pue aimdedsay JUCIUBAL PARILGNS UaSq arey suoneddde (ueot vayd ling L) JUOIUBAIY - pIoSUeH
ay) Jo kosaw ay je si yoafosd siyL yuwsad 4330 snoueA aseyd Bugyuuad ay) vt st waelosd ay SSA %E8 000'000°L M deoay WOLHBAIY
: sy0elosd pooysoqybieN Va0
anpayos| smeg| Bujpung|  dwod % 09 | uonsnnsuo) pieH 3459 syun| Kewwng 328/0id

veoz/ie/e

ajepd uonRoNSuUo0D




€ #9%ed

$Z0Z/8T/€ HRIQ YT'TZ'E AepdN uoRINAISUO)

SUWN|o?)
‘pajeidwon si 1sfoid ‘$Z0Z/Q0/CO SBM MASBWO L -uokwoyt Aq yo ubls [euly S3A %004 0p€'952 48jUaQ J0UBIRS LD
'sapesbdn ABojouysa pue Bunyjined
‘M3IA3] Japun pue pue siieday [RIMONNS ‘Bulyooy Pue JOOY JOMO L JO JudwWade|das
pasedaid 44y weynsuo) ubisaq jooy spnpul 0} sJom Quoud - g1 uoISSiWWo) puog / Buipung pis14 Ja|yosuay
‘lencsdde uoissiwwo) puog Buipuad
9202 0 pud 8y Aq pajaldwod pue $Z0Z
40 1snBny u) Buniels aNpaYDs pasiaal 'OAO WM 0y paaibe SNBSS
© Yim aunr jo pus auyy Aq pig-al pue| uaag sey SuBUodWod Bunesauab anuanal uo sasndoy jey) 1ebpng pig/ubisaquodald 103loid
payoads/umesp-a1 aq 0} s 1aloxd sy | v 186png Jano ase s1s00 payoafosd |ejo1 $2/20/Z Lo pauado spig S9A 104 - 000°000'L uoneaoudy X £202
FEELUEYY
qiuow sty panss!
3G '™ ASAING S[BUBIEW SROPJEZEH UOINOWS(-31d JO) dJ¥ 'BZeld Z 3seyd
sueT JaAlIS 1B sBuipiing om; Buluiewa) jo owa(Q B juswaleqy -owaQq eze|d suen JaAIS
‘uoRaIdWoD jeuUl 0} SHIIM ‘$202/80/€0 U0 panocsdde
9 'xoudde a%el |Im pue pZ0Z/8L/E0 pue papiwgns sem uwad owaQ ‘$Z0Z/L0/€0 UO papiwgns
10 4O9M LEIS [IIM uondNIIsucoap Buipiing sem aoueldwod Jo JaRa| pue paje|dwod uaaq sey Juawsieqy ON 360 000°961°L owa(Q eze|d sueT JaAlS
: p §50D :
G INPayds smmg| Buppung| dwod % 09 | uonsnnsuog piey 489 suun Kewwng y0afoid

yZ0T/L2IE

ajepdn uonoNIISUOD

n(
0



Miscellaneous



lartford sees rise in parking revenue as downtown begins a comeback https:ffwww.sfgate.com!business!articIefhartford-ct-parking-revenue...

1 of 2

PARK N G

Hartford sees rise in parking revenue as downtown

begins a comeback Heaasr ?tA?ebf
by R \\" -

Liese Klein

HARTFORD — More people have been paying to park in Hartford in recent months, reflecting
more XL Center events, popular Hartford Stage shows, a gradual return to the office for workers,
and a return to in-person classes for students, officials say.

City data shows a 13-percent increase in revenue from parking meters citywide in calendar year
2023 compared to 2022, and a 24-percent increase in revenue from the city’s parking app,
according to budget reports.

Money taken in by the city’s main public parking structure, the 900-space MAT Garage at Main
and Trumbull streets downtown, rose nearly 9 percent in the same period.

“I feel like people are definitely returning to the city more and there’s more events going on,” said
Jill Turlo, CEO of the Hartford Parking Authority. The opening of new shops and restaurants on
Pratt Street and on the outskirts of downtown has also drawn more parkers, she added. “It’s a really
great time for Hartford.”

Article continues below this ad

Events like the Lizzo concert last June at the gL Cente? and the recent holiday production of “A
Christmas Carol” at Hartford Stage have helpe the MAT garage, Turlo said.

After expenses, all revenue from the parking authority goes into the city’s operating fund, Turlo
said.

The seven garages housing 7,707 parking spaces that are m the Capital Region
Development Authority in downtown have also seen a steady uptick in revenues and usage in the
recent months, hitting a post-pandemic high of 75 percent occupancy as of December.

That's up from 58 percent occupancy in November 2021 but still short of pre-
pandemic levels, CRDA Executive Director Michael Freimuth said.

Article continues below this ad

«Tour CRDA garages-in Hartford’s Front Street district near the Connecticut Convention Center
and-tfeonn’s Hartford campus are back to pre-pandemic occupancies, Freimuth said.

Freimuth said he expected better numbers at the authority’§ Church Street gara when the
conversion of the Hilton Hotel is complete and the XL Center’s schedule fills up. That garage was
often nearly full pre-pandemic but lost several key corporate users, plunging to occupancy in the

mid-teens in 2022. It’s expected to reach 45 percent this year, he said.

Companies urging workers to get back to the office have helped boost parking revenue and activity
downtown in the past year, said David Griggs, CEO of MetroHartford Alliance. P

“We are seeing more return to work, and we are seeing more and more companies pushing the k

2/14/2024, 11:07 AM



lartford sees rise in parking revenue as downtown begins a comeback https://www.sfgate.com/business/article/hartford-ct-parking-revenue...

20f2

return to work,” Griggs said. “So that’s good in terms of foot traffic and support for the restaurants
and retail that had been hit so hard through the pandemic.”

Article continues below this ad

Parking ticket take dips as policies shift

Although parking revenue is up, the money taken in from parking tickets by the City of Hartford
went down 1.4 percent year-on-year due to a number of factors, Turlo said. Several workers left the
authority’s 10-person ticketing team in the last months of 2023, but those jobs are now filled, Turlo
said.

Another change has been in ticketing policy, so that those who make typos when entering their
plate numbers into forms on parking kiosks or apps are less likely to be forced to pay up.

“Essentially, they made an error, but I think issuing them a ticket is just a waste of everyone’s
time,” Turlo said.

Article continues below this ad

The city’s parking app, downloadable as “Woonerf-Hartford Parking,” is also being used by more
downtown users, making it easier to avoid overstaying your meter. “It’s a lot more convenient to be
able to sort of pull it up on your phone — you can extend a session or start a new session
remotely,” Turlo said.

Parkers to find fewer surface lots

Article continues below this ad

New in the top job as of August, Turlo of the Hartford Parking Authority said she was looking
forward to making it easier to pay for parking downtown and optimize the city’s existing parking
infrastructure.

“Since I took over, I've been working to sort of formalize a lot of our policies, and I'm looking for
every possible opportunity to see where we can update information, where we can make
improvements,” Turlo said. “I'm open to suggestions from every quarter, and we’ve been receiving
them, which is great.”

Feb 14, 2024
Photo of Liese Klein

Liese Klein is a business reporter with CT Insider focusing on the Hartford area. She has covered
business in Connecticut for 15 years and previously worked at New Haven Biz, Business New
Haven, the New York Daily News and the Asahi Evening News in Tokyo.

yo

2/14/2024, 11:07 AM



New apartments in former downtown Hartford Hilton hotel space set ... https://www.hartfordbusiness.com/article/new-apartments-in-former...

1 of 2

Hh Ho N

New apartments in former downtown Hartford
otel space set for debut
7729

By Greg Bordonaro

Developer Randy Salvatore on Thursday showed off his latest downtown Hartford project, debuting
sleek new apartments in space that formerly served as hotel rooms inside the Hilton Hartford hotel.

The $29 million redevelopment included converting the top 11 floors of the 22-story building on
Trumbull Street into 147 modern apartments. i

—_—

“The Revel” apartments include a mix of studios and one- and two-bedroom units, with panoramic
views of the city. The building’s bottom floors are now home to a DoubleTree by Hilton Hartford
hotel, which has 170 guest rooms.

The former Hilton hotel, which struggled financially for years, especially coming out of the
pandemic, had 393 guest rooms.

Leasing for the apartments will begin in about two weeks, Salvatore said, while the hotel has
remained open during the conversion.

Salvatore partnered on the project with the Waterford Group, which owned the Hilton hotel since
2005.

Len Wolman, chairman of Waterford Group, said the partnership, which included support from. the
state, city, Capital Regional Development Authority (CRDA) and Hilton, saved the building from
closure.

Salvatore, president and CEO of Stamford-based RMS Cos., was joined by Gov. Ned Lamont,
Hartford Mayor Arunan Arulampalam and William Fortier, Hilton’s senior vice president for
development in the Americas at a press conference Thursday morning.

Salvatore and others described the complicated nature of converting the hotel into apartments, and
that he was excited to “transform a dated building into a vibrant mixed-use property in the center of
downtown Hartford.”

“Looking ahead, I could not be more optimistic about Hartford’s future,” Salvatore said.
Preserving city's image

Losing money and dependent on soon-to-end federal COVID-19 relief funds for survival, the

Waterford Group in late 2021 brought plans to the CRDA to convert more than half of the Hilton
hotel’s guest rooms into apartments.

A year earlier, in 2020, an effort to auction the troubled hotel failed to turn up any offers.

Salvatore said he got involved in the conversion because he feared the loss of a prominent

downtown hotel would be a blow to the city’s image and his nearby North Crossing development,
which includes plans to build about 1,000 apartments in mostly parking lot space around Dunkip’ q\ )
Park. X P

3/7/2024, 12:22 PM



New apartments in former downtown Hartford Hilton hotel space set ... https://www.hartfordbusiness.com/article/new-apartments-in-former...

In 2022, Salvatore debuted his first 270-unit apartment building in North Crossing, known as “The
Pennant.” Work is now underway on North Crossing’s next phases.

The CRDA provided $11 million in loans to help finance the Hilton hotel conversion.

&

20f2 3/7/2024, 12:22 PM



March 4, 2024

Here’s why one engineering firm relocated from West Hartford to
downtown Hartford

HBJ PHOTO | HANNA SNYDER GAMBINI

PES Structural Engineers Principal David Aucoin in the firm's new downtown Hartford office.

By Hanna Snyder Gambini

espite suffering from a high vacancy rate, one trend that's benefitted Hartford's struggling office market has been the slow,
but consistent movement of companies relocating from the suburbs to the city’s downtown.

PES Structural Engineers

More Information >

One of the latest companies to make the move was PES Structural Engineers. The national firm has relocated its Connecticut
regional office from West Hartford to the Front Street Entertainment District in downtown Hartford.

PES Principal David Aucoin said the new 4_,g§0—square—foot space, at the corner of Columbus Boulevard and Arch Strget, offers a
more vibrant city setting for the firm’s eight Connecticut employees.

The new office also provides room for growth as PES wants to double its local employee count. PES has 57 total employees
——— s ]
between its Hartford office and Atlanta headquarters.

ADVERTISEMENT

The firm had been located in the Bishops Corner retail center of West Hartford since 2012, but it outgrew the small space, whi
had singular rooms and no open feel, Aucoin said. \.,\



“As we grew, we wanted more of an architectural engineering collaborative space, especially as people are getting back (to the
office) from the pandemic,” Aucoin said.

Room to grow
PES was founded in 1988 and offers structural engineering services to clients throughout the U.S.
it has been involved in some major local developments, including the One Park apartment project in West Hartford with Lexington

Partners, and the 55 Elm St. redevelopment in Hartford, which is converting a seven-story former government building into
apartments with Spinnaker Real Estate Partners.

The company works regularly with Hartford-area design ﬁrms llke Tecton Architects, JCJ Architecture, Crosskey Architects,
Shepley Bulfinchand Afiienta Emma, Aucoin said. .

ADVERTISEMENT

Being closer to those clients was part of the reason for the move to downtown, Aucoin said. It’s also an easier commute for most
.

employees.

When PES was looking to grow and offer a more dynamic office setting, options like leasing and renovating additional space in its
former West Hartford home, at 2446 Albany Ave., would have been too costly, and didn't suit the firm’s design needs, said Aucoin.

David Brownell, the Northeast director of marketing and business intelligence for PES, said space in West Hartford is in high
demand. The Hartford office market offered more optigns and favorable lease rates and incentives.

—

PES received a $75,000 tenant-improvement budget within the terms of its five-year lease, and the firm invested another
$200,000 in the build out of its new space, Aucoin said.

The Front Street location, at 75 Columbus Blvd., is near Infinity Music Hall and UConn's Hartford campus, in addition to
restaurants like Bear's Smokehouse BBQ, The Capital Grille and Plan b Burger Bar.

ADVERTISEMENT
PES’ office features exposed ductwork and structural beams, large windows and an open, collaborative space where engineers and
project managers can work side-by-side.
Many companies, post-pandemic, have repurposed their spaces to create a sense of community and collaboration, Aucoin said.

PES leaders also looked at space in the historic Colt Gateway building, which was architecturally appealing with concrete columns
and offered a great view of the city skyline, Aucoin said.

Aucoin said the move brings him full circle — he graduated from Trinity College in Hartford, and worked his first job in the Gold
Building at the beginning of his career in the late 1990s.

Suburban migration
PES’ move has been a bright spot in what's been a challenging post-pandemic Hartford office market.
ADVERTISEMENT
The public health crisis made remote work more popular and caused many companies to rethink their office space policies and
needs. Many businesses have adopted hybrid work models that require employees to come to the office at least a few days a week.

PES employees, for example, can work from home Mondays and Fridays, a trend that started during the pandemic, but are
encouraged to be in the office midweek.

Hybrid work schedules have made companies desire more vibrant office settings that help lure people back to the office. For some,
it has also reduced their need for space.

Downtown Hartford’s office vacancy rate was 18.7% pre-pandemic in the fourth quarter of 2019, but ballooned above 27% at the
end of the fourth quarter of 2023, according to CBRE. The city's larger Class A buildings have faced even bigger challenges, and
currently have a vacancy rate of 32%.

John McCormick, executive vice president of brokerage firm CBRE in Hartford, said 2023 represented the 10th consecutive year

of the suburban migration into Hartford. 4 \
ADVERTISEMENT (\)‘\)\/



Other recent examples included Talcott Financial Group’s move last year to downtown Hartford from Windsor. Before that,
SunLife Financial relocated its Connecticut office from Windsor to the Gold Building, at One Financial Plaza.

De_cades—long efforts to add more amenities in Hartford — like Dunkin’ Park, the Front Street Entertainment District, new
apartments and, most recently, new restaurants aided by the city’s Hart Lift grant program — have made the city more attractive,
McCormick said. o —

“People just want to be part of that versus being in a suburban office park;” McCormick said.
The city also offers a discount to more competitive office markets.

Lease rates for space in West Hartford average $35 to $40 per square foot, whereas in downtown Hartford, it's closer to $22 to $25
per square foot, McCormick said.

ADVERTISEMENT

“So, there's some economic value that companies are looking to take advantage of?” McCormick said.

At A Glance

PES Structural Engineers

Industry: Engineering consultant

HQ: Atlanta

CT office: 75 Columbus Blvd., Hartford
Top CT Executive: David Aucoin, Principal
Website: pesengineers.com

Contact: 860-479-1737

@ Sign up for Enews

Most Popular

Meet Connecticut’s 2024 Power Players

Set for Hartford growth spurt, UConn seeks to offer downtown student housing

Hartford-based Amenta Emma Architects announces leadership transition

65



~_  UCoN! NN

~

S

Set for Hartford growth spur[:, UConn ﬁeeks to offer
downtown student housing —

By Michael Puffer

The University of Connecticut is deepening its ties to the Capital City, with plans to grow its downtown
campus footprint while connecting students to new research, employment, internship and even ing
opportunities.

UConn’s tentative XL Center lease terms
More Information

The expansion includes UConn taking over 51,000 square feet of vacant space at the XL Center, where the
school this fall will debut new research and clinical programs.

University leaders are also strongly considering the addition of student dormitory space downtown. The
effort would likely include a partnership with a private developer who would convert an empty or
underutilized office building into student housing.

The overall expansion, school leaders said, aims to create new work and internship opportunities for
students, while also opening up potential partnerships with Hartford businesses, nonprofits and arts
programs.

Dormitory space would also satisfy students’ long-running desires for a more traditional college
experience in the city, said Mark Overmyer-Velazquez, dean and chief academic officer of
UConn’s Hartford campus.

“For me, it’s all about how do I improve their education and their experience, and enhance those with
what’s going on in the city,” Overmyer-Velazquez said.

UConn is finalizing a five-year lease for the XL Center space, which was previously occupied by the
University of St. Joseph’s pharmacy school.

UConn has set a tentative $1.2 million budget to retrofit the space, which will host a new agricultural and
food science program, sports medicine center, mental health clinic and two badly needed lecture halls.

[RELATED: Privately developed college dorm in downtown Waterbury pays off; UConn’s Avery Point
campus leadership shows interest]

State lawmakers last year allocated $5 million in bond funding to support the expansion. The state Bond
Commission approved those funds in December.

It will be the largest expansion in Hartford by UConn since 2017, when the school debuted its new $150
million regional campus in the former Hartford Times Building.

The Hartford campus, which relocated from West Hartford, brought with it much fanfare, originally
hosting about 2,300 undergraduate and graduate students and 300 faculty.

UConn also has its graduate business school in downtown Hartford, located at Constitution Plaza. /‘\LJ >

\
£

Residential expansion



UConn could begin offering downtown housing options by the end of this year or in 2025, school officials
said.

In addition to undergraduate students, it could accommodate pupils from UConn’s Hartford-based law
school and Farmington-based medical campus.

“We are looking at establishing a residence hall for undergraduate students, and also possibly graduate
students in downtown Hartford,” UConn Provost Anne D’Alleva recently told the Hartford Business
Journal. “Students at the Hartford campus have for some time shared that they would like to have a
housing option as part of their college experience.”

UConn is considering a pilot program in which it would lease downtown apartments from a private
landlord and make the units available for students.

It’s a model the school already employs at its campus in Stamford, where UConn leases three residential
buildings that house about 500 students who live in suite-style apartments.

UConn, which directly manages those residence halls, plans to lease additional space near its Stamford
campus this fall to increase student housing options there, officials said.

UConn also has student housing available at its Waterbury campus that operates in a slightly different
manner.

“There is a lot of demand for housing in Stamford, and we believe that demand would be equally strong for
a residential experience at the Hartford campus,” D’Alleva said.

D’Alleva said UConn isn’t looking to acquire additional Hartford real estate, so any dormitory space would
require a partnership with a private landlord or developer.

“The process right now is about identifying a suitable location and then, I think, we need to assess what
renovations might be necessary,” D’Alleva said.

Christopher Reilly, president of prolific Hartford-based developer Lexington Partners, said
his firm is speaking with UConn about possibly redeveloping existing office space into dorms, which would
be leased to the university.

“They are very motivated, and we are still trying to work out how to do it all,” Reilly said.
New programs, greater impact

City officials said UConn’s Hartford expansion will provide downtown an economic boost.
The move will bring hundreds of additional students to the city each weekday during the school year.

“We are talking about all of these younger students and grad students who are going to be spending their
time there, that will create a new attraction for business,” said Hartford Economic Development
Director Patrick Pentalow. “I think it’s a huge win for Hartford, and I think it’s a win for UConn as
well.”

HBJ PHOTO | MICHAEL PUFFER
Hartford Economic Development Director Patrick Pentalow outside City Hall.

center is meant to help Connecticut farmers produce in-demand crops, increasing the value of the state’ J

The XL Center will host a new food innovation center headed by UConn’s Department of Agriculture. T‘E\\:\\
agricultural sector. The center will also pair UConn faculty with industry to conduct research and joint



projects.

The psychology clinic will provide low-cost therapy services to the public and hands-on experience for
students. The Institute for Sports Medicine inside the XL Center will bring together researchers,
physicians, clinicians and physical therapists from the UConn Department of Kinesiology in Storrs and
UConn Health to provide instruction and services, said Pamir Alpay, UConn’s vice president for
research, innovation and entrepreneurship.

“This will be a very central location where we can do clinical work, where we can do research work,” Alpay
said.

Alpay said the university hopes the new clinical opportunities will help spur future enrollment growth. The
Hartford campus began the 2023 fall semester with 1,473 undergraduate students.

D’Alleva said the upcoming Hartford expansion also complements the university’s recently adopted 10-
year strategic master plan, which calls for “seven world-class campuses and one flagship university.”

The campuses include Storrs; the regionals in Hartford, Waterbury, Stamford and Avery Point in Groton;
along with the UConn Health facility in Farmington and UConn’s law school in Hartford.

“The idea is that we want to build each of our campuses and take advantage of opportunities that each of
our locations represent,” D’Alleva said. “Of course, Hartford is our capital and a major business city in the
nation, and so we want to build our presence in Hartford.”

UConn’s tentative XL Center lease terms

Space: 51,077 square feet
Term: Five years, with two, five-year renewal options

Cost: $970,470 for first year, with 2.5% annual increases through year five, plus a pro rata share of any
increases in common area operating costs.

Of note: $5 million in state bond funding will be used to cover relocation, tenant fit-out and
approximately three years of lease costs. The university will pay entirely for years four and five.

Landlord: Northland

Source: UConn Board of Trustees



CT metro area grabs spot on national listing of most office-apartment c... https://www.courant.com/2024/02/06/ct-metro-area-grabs-spot-on-nation...

OFf\ce conels 1onS

CT metro area grabs spot on national listing of
most office-apartment conversions expected in
2024

Kenneth R. Gosselin

Conversions of old office buildings into apartments picked up momentum in the last decade in the Hartford // /

metro area, so much so that a new report places Hartford among the top 20 metros nationwide for rental
redevelopment.
S —

The Hartford metro area came in at 17th on the list compiled by RentCafe, a nationwide online listing service
for apartments, for rental conversions. The redevelopment of offices into housing nationally got an added
boost as the pandemic altered the working environment, with office employees spending more time working
from home. As a result, office vacancies are growing, raising the critical question of what to do with all the
excess space.

The surge also comes as $150 billion in office mortgages comes due in 2024.

“As residential space demand surges, developers are leaping at the chance to repurpose these aging giants,”
according to the RentCafe report. “Currently, office conversions represent a staggering 38% of the 147,000
apartments in future adaptive reuse projects, outpacing any other building type.

()

1of3 2/6/2024, 9:32 AM



CT metro area grabs spot on national listing of most office-apartment c... https://www.courant.com/2024/02/06/ct-metro-area-grabs-spot-on-nation...

Planned Office-to-Apartment Conversions by Metro Area

Office-to-
2024 Apartments Share of
Office-to- Pipeline Y- Office-to-
Apartments o-Y% Apartments Total Future

Metro Area Pipeline Change 2024 Conversions
1 Washington, 88% 65% 9,021

D.C.
2 NewYork, 18% 45% 11,485

NY
3 Dallas, TX 58% 83% 3,833
4 Chicago, IL -9% 55% 5140

Los Angeles,
§ oA 6% 37% 6,660
6 g"‘j"e'a"d' 2012 -10% 63% 3210
g  -ancinnati 1,563 -6% 81% 1,919

OH
g (frmesly 1,510 84% 50% 3,033
9 Atlanta, GA 1,422 40% 52% 2,713
10 Phoenix, AZ 1377 114% 63% 2172
n Minneapolis, 1,334 13% 59% 2,244

MN
12 Detroit, MI 1,070 40% 27% 3,905
15 Golumbus 1,006 35% 58% 1,740
1 Philadelphia 975 136% 19% 5,092
15 Seattle, WA 973 5% 46% 2,138
16 2‘[“““9"3"‘- 942 1% 50% 1,875
7 Hartford, CT 930 61% 37% 2,523
w  Miwaukee, 911 -8% 41% 2217 0)
19 Denver, CO 902 0% 36% 2,528 (6 '

Charlatta B

20f3 2/6/2024, 9:32AM



CT metro area grabs spot on national listing of most office-apartment c... https://www.courant.com/2024/02/06/ct-metro-area-grabs-spot-on-nation...

3 of 3

Matrix/RentCafe)

“That’s not just the largest slice of the redevelopment pie—it’s a record high since 2020.,” according to the
report. “Clearly, the buzz of business is giving way to the hum of home life, right where the city’s heartbeat
used to be.”

In downtown Hartford, the office vacancy rate hit a 35-year-high in 2023.

According to RentCafe, the Hartford metro area has a pipeline of 930 apartment conversions so far in 2024, a
61% increase from the previous year. Among the projects is the conversion of the former state offices at 55
Elm St. in downtown Hartford into 164 apartments.

The conversion of office space represented 37% of all space planned for conversion to apartments in the
Hartford metro area.

Washington, D.C. metro area topped the list, with 5,820 conversions planned, followed by New York with
5,215 and Dallas with 3,163.

Across the country, there are 55,300 new apartments planned for conversion from office space, a fourfold
increase from 12,100 in 2021, RentCafe said.

Kenneth R. Gosselin can be reached at kgosselin@courant.com.

GY

2/6/2024, 9:32 AM



Here’s the real reason more empty offices aren’t being converted into... https://www.fastcompany.com/91047378/housing-market-empty-offl...

Q&:cc FNM&W

Here’s the real reason more empty offices aren’t
being converted into apartments, says Goldman

Sachs Go ldman She -5
PR RY

Meghan Malas

Underutilized office buildings, due to the surge of remote work, have increased the U.S. office
vacancy rate to 13.5%, the highest level since 2000. Over the next decade, Goldman Sachs analysts
expect the office vacancy rate to rise to 18%.

According to Goldman Sachs, about 4% of U.S. office buildings may no longer be viable. And in the
cities most affected by remote work, between 14% and 16% of offices may no longer be viable. These
are typically office buildings located in suburban areas or central business districts that were built
more than 30 years ago, have not been renovated since 2000, and currently have vacancy rates
exceeding 30%.

However, only 0.49% of office inventory was converted into multifamily units in 2023, compared to
0.23% in pre-pandemic 2019. Goldman Sachs expects that figure to rise to just 0.74% by 2028.

That’s according to a recent report published by Goldman Sachs, which concludes that the high
costs of converting office buildings to multifamily housing units are hindering a more signiﬁcant
acceleration.

How Goldman Sachs expects the office-to-multifamily
conversion rate to rise between now and 2028

Forecast for the
ffice-to

multifamdy
conversi at

Office-to
mulitifamily
conversions as
share of office
inventory

T
*J @ ResiClub

“The office-to-multifamily conversion rate is [still] quite low, suggesting that there may be
substantial financial and physical hurdles to conversion,” wrote Goldman Sachs analysts Vinay
Viswanathan and Elsie Peng in the report.

i
According to analysts at Goldman Sachs, office prices still haven’t fallen enough to entice ( 6 1’)
developers to do more conversions. T =

1 of 2 3/8/2024, 8:57 AM



Here’s the real reason more empty offices aren’t being converted into... https://www.fastcompany.com/91047378/housing-market-empty-offi...

Goldman Sachs analysts found that: “For the top 5 metropolitan areas that are most affected by
remote work, we estimate that office acquisition prices would need to fall almost 50% for
conversion to be financially feasible. This suggests that most of these offices will likely remain
underutilized in the near term.”

In part, office prices haven’t fallen further because institutional barriers to reevaluating office space

have resulted in many lenders extending or modifying office mortgages that might otherwise
default. As a result, forced property sales that would have otherwise already happened have not *

occurred.
pr—

The report states that another obstacle to conversion is safety codes. Residential building codes
require bedrooms to have certain sizes of windows, but 1t is impossible to restructure some office
buildings with deep floor plates—common in large buildings—in a way that provides all units with
proper windows, Goldman Sachs analysts explain. Additionally, transforming an office’s existing
plumbing, ventilation, and electric system for each residential unit can be challenging.

“The annual conversion rate from office to multifamily will remain low and only increase slowly to
0.74% in the next four years, delivering about 20,000 additional multifamily units per year,” wrote
Goldman Sachs. That’s a drop in the bucket compared to the total of 468,000 multifamily units that
were built in 2023.

Big picture: Office-to-residential housing conversions are on the rise; however, economic and
financial barriers mean that it still remains a small segment of the residential housing market.

By FastCo Works1 minute Read

As the pace of business continues to accelerate, the premium on productivity and talent
development has never been higher. Constrained by time-consuming tasks, many of today’s
executives are turning to Al to build efficiency up and down the ranks, while leveraging the time
saved to think bigger, manage better, and stay ahead of the competition. From generative Al tools
to IT infrastructure solutions, Al offers unprecedented potential to support productivity, inform
better decision-making, and attract and retain the best workforce talent. In this discussion, we’ll
explore how Al efficiencies can create the time and space for businesses, teams, and individuals to
thrive.

tof 2 3/8/2024, 8:57 AM



